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ANNUAL REPORT 2003

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30 T yeH

( Dollars in millions except per share data ) 2003 2002 g 2001 1«

FOR THE YEAR

Net sales $ 871.1 $ 977.1 s 1,324.1
(Loss) income before cumulative effect of accounting changes $ (10.9) $ (6.0) $ 35.2
Net (loss) income $ (10.9) $  (118.3) $ 21.1
Net {loss) income per common share:
Basic:
(Loss) income before cumulative effect of accounting changes $ (.58) $ (.35) 3 1.52
Net (loss) income $ (.56) $ (5.41) $ .88
Biluted:
{Loss) income before cumulative effect of accounting changes $ (.56) 3 (.35) 5 1.50
Net (loss) income $ (.56) $ (5.41) S .88
Common dividends per share $ 5775 s 1.32 $ 1.32
Free cash flow:n
( Net cash provided before financing activities less dividends paid ) $ 80.2 $ 79.6 $ 52.7
AT YEAR-END
Total debt $ 396.1 $ 442.8 $ 522.7
Debt to capital ratio 45.5% 46.6% 44.6%

[A] Fiscal 2003 includes a special charge of $30.6 million related principally to workforce reduction, pension plan curtailment loss, loss on early
retirement of debt and writedown of certain assets.

[B] Fiscal 2002 includes a $112.3 million charge ($5.06 per diluted and basic share) for a cumulative effect of an accounting change rclating to
the adoption of SFAS 142, “Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets”.

[C] Fiscal 2001 includes $14.1 million after-tax change ($.64 per basic share and $.62 per diluted share) for a cumulative effect of an accounting
change relating to the adoption of SAB 101 “Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements”. Fiscal 2001 also includes a special charge of $37.6
million related principally to the realignment of Specialty Alloys Operations, planned divestitures of Engineered Products Group businesses
and a loss on the disposal of the Bridgeport, Connecticut site.

[D] For additional information regarding our definition and calculation of free cash flow, see page 18,
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Carpenter Technology makes and distributes a
broad range of specialty alloys, as well as engineered products
from metallic and ceramic materials. Our materials expertise
has enabled us to develop leading, innovative products.
We currently have 56 active patents and 11 pending patent
applications. Our materials are often used toc withstand

chalienging operating conditions:
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JostarNLiss svruinLs, defined as steel wi‘th‘ moreé than
10 percent chromium, resist corrosion. Our Project 70+® family offreé‘machiﬁing
stainless alloys are easier to machine into parts, by virtue of their f:h(srnistr);‘x
or processing. Our BioDur® family of medical alloys provide the strength,
biocompatibility and corrosion resistance needed for a range of operating rb‘Qm
applications. In addition to manufacturing stainless steel mill forms, such as.
bar and wire, Carpenter also makes stainless loose powder, and various stainless ‘
fabricated products.

Se o ooa . w0 e are made from two or more chemical
elements. They have special electrical, thermal, magnetic, corrosion resistance
or mechanical properties. Qur Pyromet® family of high-temperature alloys, for
example, retain their strength despite very hot environments—up to 2000° F for
some alloys. We make both mill forms, powder metals and fabricated products

from special alloys.
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8 TITANIUM ALLOYS are produced by our Dynamet
Subsidiary. These alloys are used when corrosion resistance and a high strength-
to-weight ratio is needed. Our SmartCoil® titanium fastener wire, for example,
has long been an industry leader in the aerospace industry.

5 TOOL AND DIE STEELS are alloys of iron that are
strong and wear resistant. Some tool steels, such as our Micro-Melt® alloy family,
are made by using high-pressure gas atomization to break up a molten metal
stream into fine droplets. The particles that solidify are consolidated—or HIP’d
(hot isostatic pressed)—into mill forms, offering superior properties to cast or
wrought products.

8 ADVANCED CERAMICS COMPONENTS are used
where high performance in extremely harsh environments is required. Our
patent pending Z-Max choke valves, for example, are metal/ceramic assemblies
uniquely designed to withstand the severe wear experienced in high-pressure
oil wells. They're made from a new high-strength zirconia grade developed
by Carpenter Advanced Ceramics. Our silica ceramic cores, produced
by Carpenter’s Certech subsidiary, are used for turbine airfoil investment
castings, where tight-tolerance, internal cooling passages enable the airfoils
to withstand extreme heat.

Through the years, Carpenter has developed many proprietary
products. While our brands may not be known to you, many manufacturers
around the world count on Carpenter to provide materials that provide special
properties—and make tomorrow’s innovative products possible.
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Our materials are used by many industries, in
applications that range from thermostats and golf clubs to
fighter jets and catheter wire. Some typical places where

you’ll find our products are:

7 AEROSsPACE: aircraft bearings and gears, turbine blades,
high-pressure turbine discs, landing gear, ducting, fasteners.

J OINDUSTRIAL: control and measurement devices, offshore
oil and gas production, pump and valve parts, tools and dies, wear and corrosive
protective coatings.

L« s . ..t telecommunications equipment, computer
monitors, appliances, bicycles, eyeglass frames, firearms.

0 AUTOMOTIVE:

valves, coil racing suspension springs and diesel engine components.

fuel injector castings and parts, engine
M E I { A spinal fixation components, dental implant posts
and wire for braces, instruments, orthopaedic implants to replace hips,
knees and elbows.

L POWER GENERATION:
fuel channels, neutron absorption products.

industrial gas turbines, nuclear
As products change—and the materials they’re made from must meet

new requirements—Carpenter’s know-how enables us to make engineered

materials for a changing world.

a/ : FY 03 Sales by End-Use Barkat

sales «
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The critical accounting policies affecting our more significant judgments and estimates used in the
preparation of our consolidated financial statements are shown on pages 18 and 19.

Management’s Discussion of Operations
Net sales and earnings trends for the past three fiscal years are summarized below:

(in millions, except per share data) 2003 2002 2001
Net sales $ 871.1 $ 9771 $ 1,324.1
Net (loss) income $ (10.9) $ (118.3) $ 21.1
Diluted (loss) earnings per share $ (0.56) $ (5.41) $ 0.88

Adoption of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142 in Fiscal 2002

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and
Other Intangible Assets” which primarily addresses the accounting for goodwill and intangible assets subsequent
to their acquisition. Under SFAS 142, goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are no longer amortized,
and are tested for impairment at least annually. We adopted SFAS 142 in fiscal 2002, and recognized an
impairment charge.

The $112.3 million impairment charge or $5.06 per diluted share was recognized in the Specialty Metals
segment. This non-cash, non-operating charge was recognized as a cumulative effect of an accounting change as
of the beginning of fiscal 2002. The fair value of the reporting units was estimated on July 1, 2001 based upon
discounted cash flow analyses and the use of market multiples. This charge was necessary because the fair value
of certain reporting units was less than their carrying value. The goodwill stemmed from our acquisitions of
several specialty metals companies between 1993 and 1998. During the 18—24 months prior to July 1, 2001, sales
by the acquired companies to several end-use markets had experienced downturns due to general economic
conditions and some were further impacted by the continuing high level of low priced imports.

We conducted our annual impairment review of goodwill during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2003 and 2002
and determined that there was no additional goodwill impairment. See note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Adoption of SAB 101 in Fiscal 2001

Effective July 1, 2000, we changed our method of accounting for revenue recognition in accordance with
the guidance of the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101 (SAB 101),
“Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements” For most of our sales, the standard terms of sale included a
provision that title to the goods was retained as a security interest until payment was received, even though the
risks and benefits of ownership were passed to the customer at the time of shipment. Under SAB 101, except at
certain foreign subsidiaries, revenue cannot be recognized until title passes to the customer, which in our case was
when payment was received. This bulletin was adopted prospectively, and therefore did not result in a restatement
of any results reported prior to July 1, 2000.

On April 1, 2001, we changed our terms of sale so that revenue is recognized when product is shipped,
in accordance with our historical practice. Therefore, our results for the quarter ended June 30, 2001 included
revenues from shipments made in the quarter as well as collections on prior sales. The combined effect of SAB 101
and the change in terms of sale increased fiscal 2001 sales by $138.0 million and income before cumulative effect
of accounting change by $14.1 million, net of $9.4 million of tax. The cumulative effect recorded on July 1, 2000
of this change in accounting principle was a charge of $14.1 million after taxes, or $0.62 per diluted share.

Special Charges Recorded in Fiscal 2003 and 2001

During fiscal 2003, we incurred a special charge of $30.6 million before taxes. Of this amount,
$14.2 million was incurred during the first fiscal quarter, $12.8 million was incurred during the second fiscal
quarter and $3.6 million was incurred during the fourth fiscal quarter. The first half actions were taken as part of
our strategy to reduce costs and improve operational effectiveness. The fourth quarter charge was related
primarily to the early redemption of debt.
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During the fourth fiscal quarter of 2001, we incurred a special charge of $37.6 million before taxes. The
special charge incurred during the fourth fiscal quarter related principally to the realignment of Specialty Alloys
Operations, planned divestitures of certain Engineered Products Group businesses and a loss on the disposal of
the Bridgeport, Connecticut site.

See note 3 to our consolidated financial statements.

Comparative Information for Fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001
The chart below shows our net sales by major product class for the past three fiscal years:

(in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Stainless steels $ 392.8 45% $ 395.7 40% $ 569.4 43%
Special alloys 291.7 33% 367.9 38% 466.7 36%
Ceramics and other materials 83.2 10% 94.0 10% 132.4 10%
Titanium products 66.6 8% 82.5 8% 92.7 7%
Tool and other steels 36.8 4% 37.0 4% 62.9 4%
Total net sales $ 871.1 100% $ 9771 100%  $1,324.1 100%
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS — FISCAL 2003 COMPARED TO FISCAL 2002
Overview

Our net loss for fiscal 2003 was $10.9 million or $0.56 per diluted share versus a net loss of $118.3 million
or $5.41 per diluted share for fiscal 2002. The fiscal 2002 net loss before the cumulative effect of the accounting
change for goodwill (which was $112.3 million or $5.06 per diluted share and is discussed in footnote & to
the consolidated financial statements) was $6.0 million or $0.35 per diluted share.

We improved profitability in fiscal 2003 through cost reduction efforts, productivity and manufacturing
improvements and continued to generate significant free cash flow, despite challenging economic conditions in
many of the markets that we serve, including two of our key markets — aerospace and power generation.

In fiscal 2003, we generated $80.2 million of free cash flow in addition to the $79.6 million generated
during fiscal 2002. Our efforts to improve working capital management by reducing inventories by $8.2 million
and accelerate the collection of accounts receivable, the reduction in capital spending to $8.5 million, a decrease
in our dividend and the receipt of $8.5 million cash from the sales of two small business units contributed to the
high level of cash generated and the corresponding improved liquidity. Consequently, total net debt decreased
$77.8 million in fiscal 2003 to a level of $356.3 million or 42.7 percent of capital.

Net Sales

Net sales for fiscal 2003 were $871.1 million or a decrease of 10.8 percent from $977.1 million in fiscal
2002. The $106.0 million decrease in net sales was chiefly due to reduced demand for certain high temperature
alloys, titanium alloys and ceramic products primarily due to lower build rates of commercial aircraft and industrial
gas turbines. Demand for these materials was further affected by inventory adjustments within their respective supply
chains. Partially offsetting the decline in these markets were volume increases for stainless steel sold to customers
serving several consumer and industrial markets. Despite increased stainless volumes from a year ago, sales were
adversely affected by a shift in product mix towards lower value materials. In addition, sales were adversely effected
by excess global stainless steel capacity which continued to place downward pressure on pricing.

International sales decreased 13 percent to $217.9 million from the prior year. Details of sales by geographical
region for the past three fiscal years are presented in note 19 to the consolidated financial statements.

Gross Profit

The gross profit of 17.6 percent for fiscal 2003 was better than last year’s 16.7 percent. This increase was
primarily due to better manufacturing efficiencies and lower costs. In addition, last year was negatively impacted
by higher LIFO inventory layer liquidations at increased costs and inefficiencies caused by operating at lower levels.
These factors were partially offset by the reduced shipment levels of higher value products sold to the aerospace
and power generation markets, increased sales of lower valued stainless wire and rod products, sustained pricing
pressures on stainless products and a reduced net pension credit.
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Selling and Administrative Expenses

Selling and administrative expenses decreased to $118.8 million or 13.6 percent of net sales versus
$142.1 million or 14.5 percent of net sales a year ago. The $23.3 million, or 16.4 percent, decrease was primarily
due to a reduction in salary expense and benefits ($9.8 million), lower professional fees and outside services
($4.9 million) and lower depreciation and amortization expense ($2.5 million}, partially offset by the reduced net
pension credit ($5.7 million).

nterest Expense
Interest expense of $31.0 million was lower than last year by $3.6 million due to reduced debt levels and
lower interest rates.

Other Income, Net

Other income, net was $3.8 million in fiscal 2003 versus $0.5 million in fiscal 2002. Fiscal 2003 included
the receipt of $2.8 million of tariffs from the U.S. Customs Department under the “Dumping and Subsidy Offset
Act of 20017, $1.8 million of interest income, a $1.1 million loss on writedowns and disposals of property, plant
and equipment and $0.7 million in reserves related to former Talley Industries subsidiaries. Fiscal 2002 included
a $4.4 million loss on writedowns and disposals of property, plant and equipment, the receipt of $3.5 million of
tariffs and $2.0 million of interest income.

Income Taxes

Our effective tax rate (income tax expense or benefit as a percent of income or loss before taxes) for
fiscal 2003 was a benefit of 52.4 percent as compared to a benefit of 54.9 percent last year. The current year rate
is more favorable than our statutory rate of 35 percent principally because it includes a $2.3 million favorable
adjustment relating to research and development credits. The fiscal 2002 rate was favorably impacted by
$1.6 million in research and development credits. See note 17 to the consolidated financial statements for a
reconciliation of the statutory federal tax rates to the effective tax rates.

Business Segment Results (See note 19 to the consolidated financial statements):

Specialty Metals Segment

Net sales for fiscal 2003 for this segment, which aggregates the Specialty Alloys Operations (SAO),
Dynamet, and Carpenter Powder Products (CPP), were $760.2 million or $90.6 million (10.6 percent) lower
than the $850.8 million for fiscal 2002. SAQ sales decreased 10 percent from a year ago due to a weaker sales
mix and reduced selling prices. Decreased shipment levels of higher value special alloys and sustained pricing
pressures caused by the availability of low priced stainless steel products adversely impacted sales. Volume was
marginally higher than last year due mainly to increased sales of lower value stainless wire and rod products.
Dynamet’s sales decreased 22 percent in fiscal 2003 versus a year ago. The decline in sales was due primarily
to lower volumes sold to the aerospace market. CPP’s sales were eight percent higher than a year ago due
primarily to new customer sales and increased sales in Europe.

Income for the Specialty Metals segment was $38.8 million for fiscal 2003, which was $25.9 million
higher than a year ago. The increase reflected improved operating efficiencies, lower costs and the effects on
segment income of a more modest level of inventory reduction versus a year ago.

Engineered Products Segment

Net sales for this segment for fiscal 2003 were $113.3 million as compared to $128.5 million for the
same period a year ago. This group of companies was largely affected by the slowdown in the aerospace and
power generation markets. Approximately $10 million of the decline in sales was due to the divestiture of
certain businesses.

Income for the Engineered Products segment for fiscal 2003 was $10.9 million versus $10.5 million a year
ago. The increase in segment income, despite the lower sales volume and increased quality and environmental
reserves, primarily reflects the benefit of cost savings initiatives.

Net Pension Credit

The net pension credit represents income relating to our overfunded defined benefit pension plan
(“GRP Plan”) less an expense for other postretirement benefit plans and other underfunded defined benefit pension
plans. The net pension credit was $3.4 million for fiscal 2003 versus $17.1 million last year. The lower level of the
net pension credit versus the prior year was due primarily to the equity markets’ investment losses on the pension
and postretirement plan assets. The excess of plan assets over the projected benefit obligation of the GRP Plan
was $28.5 million, $175.8 million and $308.5 million at June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

—_— T4 ~
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS — FISCAL 2002 COMPARED TO FISCAL 2001

Overview

Our net loss for fiscal 2002 was $118.3 million or $5.41 per diluted share versus net income of
$21.1 million or $0.88 per diluted share for fiscal 2001. Our net loss before the cumulative effect of the
accounting change for goodwill (which is $112.3 million or $5.06 per diluted share and is discussed in footnote
6 to our consolidated financial statements) was $6.0 million or $0.35 per diluted share.

Fiscal 2002 was a very challenging year due to a recession in the U.S. manufacturing sector, which was further
compounded by our customers’ inventory reduction efforts. Sales volumes were further dampened by the continuing
high level of low-priced stainless steel imports and a decline in aerospace and power generation markets.

In fiscal 2002, we generated $79.6 million of free cash flow. Our efforts to improve working capital
management contributed to the high level of cash generated and the corresponding improved liquidity. Such
efforts included a reduction in inventories by $51.2 million through the enhancement of our order management
systems and improvements in our production processes, our efforts to accelerate the collection
of accounts receivable, our efforts to reduce capital spending by $23.8 million from fiscal 2001, and the receipt
of $3.0 million cash from the sales of two small business units. Consequently, our total net debt decreased
$80.8 million in fiscal 2002 to a level of $434.1 million or 46.1 percent of capital.

Net Sales

We reported net sales for fiscal 2002 of $977.1 million compared to $1.3 billion in fiscal 2001. Of the
$347.0 million, or 26.2 percent, decrease in net sales, $178.0 million was due to lower shipment levels throughout
fiscal 2002 primarily because of the manufacturing recession and the effects on the economy of the tragic events
of September 11th, especially during the second half of fiscal 2002 and $138.0 million was due to the combined
effect of SAB 101 and the change in terms of sale during 2001. Our Specialty Metals segment experienced most
of our volume decrease as a result of lower stainless steel shipments caused by weaker demand in the automotive,
industrial and consumer markets, due in part to a high level of imports of bar, rod and wire. Additionally, there were
lower special alloy shipments due primarily to reduced demand from the aerospace and power generation markets.

Unit selling price decreases coupled with a leaner product mix, especially during the second half of fiscal
2002, accounted for approximately $31.0 million of our revenue decrease.

International sales increased 2 percent to $249.1 million from the prior year, particularly in Europe.
Details of sales by geographical region for the past three fiscal years are presented in note 19 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Gross Profit

Our fiscal 2002 gross profit of 16.7 percent was lower than the fiscal 2001 gross profit of 21.6 percent.
This decrease was primarily due to lower production levels, LIFO inventory layer liquidations at higher costs
{($9.0 million) and inefficiencies caused by operating at lower levels (approximately $6.0 million), the shift to a
less profitable product mix, and a reduced net pension credit ($20.4 million). These negatives were partially offset
by lower raw material costs and lower labor and benefit costs due to approximately 350 fewer workers in Specialty
Alloys Operations.

Selling and Administrative Expenses

Selling and administrative expenses of $142.1 million were down $11.6 million compared to fiscal 2001.
The decrease was principally due to the elimination of goodwill amortization of $6.7 million in fiscal 2002
pursuant to our adoption of SFAS 142 and a $4.7 million reduction in salary expense and fringe benefits.
However, selling and administrative expenses as a percent of sales increased to 14.5 percent in fiscal 2002 from
13.0 percent in fiscal 2001.

Interest Expense
Interest expense decreased $5.7 million to $34.6 million in fiscal 2002 compared to fiscal 2001 due to
lower debt levels and lower interest rates on debt.

Other Income, Net

Other income, net was $0.5 million in fiscal 2002 versus $2.3 million in fiscal 2001. Fiscal 2002 included
a $4.4 million loss on writedowns and disposals of property, plant and equipment ($3.7 million occurred in the
fourth quarter), the receipt of $3.5 million of tariffs in December 2001 from the U.S. Customs Department under
the “Dumping and Subsidy Offset Act of 2001” and $2.0 million of interest income. Fiscal 2001 included
$1.9 million of gains on the disposal of warehouses, $1.9 million writedown to the market valuation of investments
in life insurance policies, and $2.6 million of interest income.
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Income Taxes

Our effective tax rate (income tax expense or benefit as a percent of income or loss before taxes) for
fiscal 2002 was a benefit of 54.9 percent versus an expense of 39.7 percent for fiscal 2001. The fiscal 2002 rate is
more favorable than our statutory rate of 35 percent principally because it includes a $1.6 million favorable
adjustment relating to research and development credits. The fiscal 2001 rate is negatively impacted by the special
charge taken to writedown certain operating assets including non-tax deductible goodwill. See note 17 to the
consolidated financial statements for a reconciliation of the statutory federal tax rates to the effective tax rates.

Business Segment Results (See note 19 to the consolidated financial statements):

Specialty Metals Segment

Net sales for fiscal 2002 for this segment, which aggregates the Specialty Alloys Operations (SAO),
Dynamet, and Carpenter Powder Products (CPP), were $850.8 million or $317.8 million (27.2 percent) lower
than the $1.2 billion for fiscal 2001. SAQO sales decreased by 27 percent due to lower stainless steel shipments
caused by: (1) weaker demand in the automotive, industrial and consumer markets, (2) a high level of
imports of bar, rod and wire, and (3) the combined effect of SAB 101 and the change in terms of sale during
2001 ($128.3). Additionally, there were lower special alloy shipments due primarily to reduced demand from
the aerospace and power generation markets during the second half of fiscal 2002. Dynamet’s sales increased
1 percent from the same period a year ago, benefiting from strong demand for medical products and
improved pricing during the first half of fiscal 2002. CPP’s sales declined 32 percent from the same period a
year ago primarily because of lower tool steel sales due to weak demand in the automotive market as well as
a high level of imports.

Income for our Specialty Metals segment was $12.9 million, which was $85.9 million lower than fiscal
year 2001’s $98.8 million. This decrease was due primarily to SAO’s lower shipment levels, lower production
levels, LIFO inventory layer liquidations at higher costs ($9.0 million), inefficiencies caused by operating at
lower levels (approximately $6.0 million), the shift to a less profitable product mix, and due to the combined
effect of SAB 101 and the change in terms of sale during 2001 ($20.6 million). These negative factors were
partially offset by lower raw material costs, lower labor and benefit costs due to approximately 500 fewer
workers and the elimination of goodwill amortization pursuant to our adoption of SFAS 142 ($5.6 million).

Engineered Products Segmeni

Net sales for this segment were $128.5 million in fiscal 2002, a decrease of $28.4 million or 18.1 percent
from $156.9 million in fiscal 2001. The two EPG business units that were sold in fiscal 2002 accounted for
$5.9 million of the year-to-year reduction. The balance of the reduction was primarily attributable to weaker
demand for aerospace, power generation and automotive-related products, weaker demand for certain
telecommunication products because of the general industry slowdown and due to the combined effect of
SAB 101 and the change in terms of sale during 2001 ($9.7 million). Partally offsetting those factors, EPG
experienced stronger demand in the nuclear fuel channels and various consumer product markets. Income
was $10.5 million in fiscal 2002 compared to $15.7 million in fiscal 2001. Lower labor and benefit costs due
to approximately 300 fewer employees and the elimination of goodwill amortization pursuant to the adoption
of SFAS 142 ($1.1 million) during fiscal 2002 partially offset the net sales revenue decline, $3.0 million of
which was attributable to the combined effect of SAB 101 and the change in terms of sale during 2001.

Net Pension Credit

The net pension credit represents the income relating to our overfunded defined benefit pension plan
(“GRP Plan”) less an expense for our postretirement benefit plans and other underfunded defined benefit
pension plans. The net pension credit was $17.1 million for fiscal 2002 versus $40.3 million in fiscal 2001. The
lower level of the net pension was due primarily to the equity markets’ investment losses during fiscal 2001. The
excess of plan assets over the projected benefit obligation of the GRP Plan was $175.8 million at June 30, 2002.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION OF CASH FLOW AND FINANCIAL CONDITION

During fiscal 2003 and the prior two fiscal years, we maintained the ability to provide cash to meet our
needs through cash flow from operations, management of working capital and the flexibility to use outside
sources of financing to supplement internally generated funds.

QOur cash from operations was $92.2 million for fiscal 2003 and $143.7 million a year ago. Inventories
were $8.2 million lower in fiscal 2003 than a year ago. From their peak in December 2000, inventories are now
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$122 miilion lower. The days sales outstanding, including receivables outstanding under a receivables purchase
facility, was reduced to 54 days in fiscal 2003 from 56 days a year ago.

Capital expenditures for plant, equipment and software were $8.5 million during fiscal 2003 versus
$26.7 million for fiscal 2002.

As part of our debt refinancing strategy designed to enhance liquidity, we entered into a series of financing
arrangements. In August 2001, we issued $100 million of 10-year medium-term notes with a coupon of 7.625 percent.
We used the net proceeds from the sale of the notes to reduce the outstanding principal amount under our short-term
revolving credit agreements.

In November 2001, we entered into a $125 million five-year unsecured credit facility (“Committed
Facility”) and a $75 million 364-day unsecured credit facility (“364-day Facility”). Borrowings under each of the
facilities accrue at either a base rate or LIBOR plus applicable margin. The facilities contain two financial
covenants, a debt-to-capital test and an EBITDA-to-interest coverage test. At June 30, 2003, we had approximately
$165 million available under our various facilities.

In December 2001, Carpenter and CRS Funding Corp., a wholly owned consolidated Special Purpose
Entity, entered into a $75 million three-year accounts receivable purchase facility (“Purchase Facility”) with an
independent financial institution. In March 2003, we reduced this Facility to $50 million.

Funds obtained under the Committed Facility, 364-day Facility and the Purchase Facility will be used for
general corporate purposes. Gur ability to borrow under the Committed Facility and 364-Day Facility are governed
by covenants, while the ability to sell receivables under the Purchase Facility are governed by certain receivable
performance ratios. Our ability to obtain funds under each of these facilities is not contingent upon us maintaining
a minimum debt rating. The applicable margin on borrowings under the Committed Facility and 364-Day Facility,
however, is determined by our debt rating. The Committed Facility, 364-Day Facility and the Purchase Facility
replaced other credit facilities that were to mature between November 2001 and February 2002,

On September 3, 2002, we and our lenders amended our $125 million, five-year Committed Facility. The
amendment reduced the minimum coverage under the EBITDA-to-interest covenant for the trailing four quarter
periods ending September 30, 2002, December 31, 2002 and March 31, 2003. Thereafter, the covenant reverted
to the original terms under the Committed Facility.

Also on September 3, 2002, we entered into a $75 million, 364-day unsecured credit facitity which replaced
the expiring 364-day Facility. The terms and conditions of the new 364-day facility are essentially the same as those
contained in our amended $125 million Committed Facility.

In May 2003, Carpenter issued $100 million of 10-vear senior unsecured notes with a coupon of 6.625 percent.
Proceeds from the sale of the notes were used to redeem approximately $90 million of Carpenter’s 9 percent
debentures due 2022. The refinancing eliminates a mandatory sinking fund requirement of $5 million annually
between 2003 and 2021. The debentures were callable at a price of 103.82 percent plus accrued interest through the
redemption date. The remaining proceeds were used for general corporate purposes. In connection with the early
redemption, a special charge of $4.5 million was recorded, including unamortized discount and debt issuance costs.

Based upon its current cash position and expected future liquidity needs, we did not renew the 364-day
Facility which expired on September 3, 2003. We are in the process of increasing the Committed Facility from
%125 million to at least $150 million.

For the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, interest cost totaled $31.1 million, $34.9 million and $41.1
million of which $0.1 million, $0.3 million and $0.8 million, respectively, were capitalized as part of the cost of
plant, equipment and software.

In the aggregate, we can borrow up to approximately $165.0 million under the above facilities as of
June 30, 2003.

A component of our debt refinancing strategy is to maintain a certain level of floating rate debt relative
to our fixed rate debt. In order to achieve this targeted level, we use interest rate swaps, These instruments will
obligate us to pay a swap counterparty either a floating rate of interest in return for us receiving a fixed rate
of interest or obligate us to pay a fixed rate of interest in return for us receiving a floating rate of interest. At
June 30, 2003 and 2002, we had entered into interest rate swaps with a notional principal amount of $86.0 million
and $62.5 million, respectively.

As a result of our efforts to improve our working capital management, total net debt decreased $77.8 million
in fiscal 2003 to $356.3 million or 42.7 percent of capital, versus $434.1 million or 46.1 percent of capital at June 30,
2002. Management believes that the presentation of net debt provides useful information to investors regarding
our financial condition because cash is expected to be used for debt repayment. We expect to utilize free cash
flow primarily to reduce outstanding debt, to the extent it is available to pay down, to achieve our targeted debt to
capital ratio of approximately 35 percent.

We believe that our present financial resources, both from internal and external sources, and without the
increase to the Committed Facility, will be adequate to meet our foreseeable shortterm and long-term liquidity needs.
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Non-GAAP Financial Measures
The following tables provide additional information regarding certain non-GAAP financial measures.
Cur definitions and calculations of these items may not necessarily be the same as those used by other companies.

Free Cash Flow Year Ended
June 30
(in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Net cash provided from operations $ 92.2 $ 143.7 $118.6
Net cash provided from (used for)
investing activities 2.5 (23.1) (35.2)

Net change in accounts receivable

purchase facility - (10.0) -
Dividends paid (14.5) (31.0) (30.7)
Free cash flow $ 80.2 $ 796 $ 527

Management believes that the presentation of free cash flow provides useful information to investors
regarding our financial condition because it is a measure of cash generated which management evaluates for
alternative uses and has chosen to apply to debt repayment.

Net Debt Year Ended

June 30
(in millions) 2003 2002
Short-term debt $ 17.1 $ 168
Current portion of long-term debt 0.1 50.2
Long-term debt, net of current portion 378.9 375.8
Total Debt $ 396.1 $ 4428
Accounts receivable purchase facility 10.0 10.0
Cash (53.5) (18.7)
Checks not cleared 3.9 -
Net Debt $ 356.3 § 4341

Management believes that the presentation of net debt provides useful information to investors
regarding our financial condition because accumulated cash is expected to be used for debt repayment until a
targeted debt to capital ratio is achieved.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates. On an on-going basis, we evaluate our estimates, including those related to bad debts, customer claims,
inventories, goodwill, intangible assets, income taxes, restructuring, pensions and other postretirement benefits,
contingencies and litigation, environmental liabilities, and derivative instruments and hedging activities.

We believe the following are our critical accounting policies impacting the preparation of our
consolidated financial statements:

We maintain an allowance for doubtful accounts for estimated losses resulting from the failure of our
customers to make required payments. We perform ongoing credit evaluation on our customers. Should the
financial condition of our customers deteriorate, resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments,
additional allowances may be required.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. The cost of inventories is determined primarily
using the last-in, first-out (LIFO) method. We write down our inventory for estimated obsolescence or unmarketable
inventory equal to the difference between our cost of inventory and the estimated market value based upon
assumptions about future demand and market conditions. If actual market conditions are less favorable than
those projected by management, additional inventory writedowns may be required.

Our prepaid pension asset on the balance sheet is primarily a result of the overfunded status of
Carpenter’s GRP Flan and the historical recording of pension credits on our consolidated statement of operations.
The amount of the pension credit or expense, which is determined annually, is based upon the value of the assets
in the pension trust at the beginning of the fiscal year as well as actuarial assumptions, such as discount rate and
long-term rate of return on plan assets. The assumed long-term rate of return on pension plan assets is reviewed at

"
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each year end based on the plan’s investment policies, an analysis of the historical returns of the capital markets,
and current interest rates. The plan’s current allocation policy is to have approximately 60 percent U.S. and
international equities and 40 percent fixed income. The discount rate for the U.S. plan is determined by reference
to Moody’s AA corporate bond index. The fluctuations in stock and bond markets could cause actual investment
results to be significantly different from those assumed, and, therefore, significantly impact the valuation of the
assets in our pension trust. Changes in actuarial assumptions could significantly impact the accounting for the pension
assets and liabilities. In fiscal 2004 the pension credit will change to a pension expense. If the assumed long-term
rate of return on plan assets was changed by 1 percent, the net pension expense would change by approximately
$6.8 million. If the discount rate was changed by 0.25 percent, the net pension expense would change by approximately
$1.9 million.

Long-lived assets are reviewed for impairment and written down to fair value whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable through estimated future undiscounted
cash flows, The amount of the impairment loss is the excess of the carrying amount of the impaired assets over the
fair value of the assets based upon estimated future discounted cash flows. We evaluate long-lived assets for impairment
by individual business unit. Changes in estimated cash flows could have a significant impact on whether or not an
asset is impaired and the amount of the impairment.

Goodwill is not amortized, but instead is tested for impairment, at least annually. Potential impairment
is identified by comparing the fair value of a reporting unit to its carrying value, including goodwill. The fair value
is estimated based upon discounted cash flow analysis and the use of market multiples. If the carrying value of the
reporting unit exceeds its fair value, any impairment loss is measured by comparing the carrying value of the
reporting unit’s goodwill to its implied fair value,

Environmental expenditures that pertain to current operations or to future revenues are expensed or
capitalized consistent with Carpenter’s capitalization policy for property, plant and equipment. Expenditures that
result from the remediation of an existing condition caused by past operations and that do not contribute to
current or future revenues are expensed. Liabilities are recognized for remedial activities when the remediation
is probable and the cost can be reasonably estimated. Recoveries of expenditures for environmental remediation
are recognized as assets only when recovery is deemed probable. Estimated liabilities are not discounted to
present value, but estimated assets are measured on a discounted basis.

Our current risk management strategies include the use of derivative instruments to reduce certain risks.
The critical strategies include: (1) the use of commodity options to fix the price of a portion of anticipated future
purchases of certain raw materials and energy to offset the effects of changes in the costs of those commodities,
and (2) the use of foreign currency forwards and options to hedge a portion of anticipated future sales
denominated in foreign currencies, principally the Euro and Pound Sterling, in order to offset the effect of
changes in exchange rates. These derivatives have been designated as cash flow hedges and unrealized net gains
and losses are recorded in the accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) component of stockholders’
equity. We evaluate all derivative instruments each quarter to determine that they are highly effective. Any
ineffectiveness is recorded in our consolidated statement of operations. If the anticipated future transactions are
no longer expected to occur, unrealized gains and losses on the related hedges would be reclassified to the
consolidated statement of operations.

Contractual Cash Obligations
At June 30, 2003, we had the following contractual cash obligations and other commercial commitments
and contingencies:

(in millions) Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal Fiscal

Total 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter
Long-term debt $ 3789 $ 01 $ 403 $ 1.6 $ 03 $ 33.3 $ 303.3
Operating leases 33.8 7.8 6.6 5.4 4.5 3.9 5.6
Purchase commitments 90.6 90.6 - - - - -

Total contractual
cash obligations $ 5038.3 $ 985 $ 46.9 £ 70 $ 48 $ 372 $ 308.9

We have entered into purchase commitments primarily for various key raw materials at market related
prices, all made in the normal course of business. The purchase commitments covered by these agreements aggregate
approximately $90.6 million, all of which relates to fiscal 2004.

In additon, we had $10.6 million of outstanding letters of credit as of June 30, 2003.
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Market Sensitive Instruments and Risk Management

We use derivative financial instruments to reduce certain types of financial risk. Raw material cost fluctuations
for our Specialty Metals Segment are normally offset by selling price adjustments, primarily through the use of
surcharge mechanisms and base price adjustments. Firm price sales contracts involve a risk of profit margin decline
in the event of raw material increases. We reduce this risk on certain raw materials by entering into commodity
forward contracts and commodity price swaps on a portion of our requirements, which are effective hedges of the risk.

We use forwards and options to fix the price of a portion of anticipated future purchases of certain energy
to offset the effects of changes in the costs of these commodities.

Fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates could subject us to risk of losses on anticipated future
cash flows from our foreign operations. Foreign currency forward contracts are used to hedge certain foreign
exchange risk.

All hedging strategies are reviewed and approved by senior financial management before being implemented.
Senior financial management has established policies regarding the use of derivative instruments that prohibit
the use of speculative or leveraged derivatives. Market valuations are performed at least quarterly to monitor the
effectiveness of our risk management programs.

The status of our financial instruments as of june 30, 2003, is provided in note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements. Assuming on June 30, 2003 (a) an instantaneous 10 percent decrease in the price of raw
materials and energy for which we have commodity forward contracts, our results of operations would not have
been materially affected, (b) a 10 percent strengthening of the U.S. dollar versus foreign currencies for which foreign
exchange forward contracts existed, our results of operations would not have been materially affected, (c) a 10 percent
increase in our annual interest rate on short-term debt, our results of operations would not have been materially
affected, and (d) a 10 percent decrease in the market value of investments in corporate-owned life insurance would
result in a decrease of investment income of $2.7 million after tax.

Contingencies
Environmental

We are subject to various stringent federal, state, local and foreign environmental laws and regulations
relating to pollution, protection of public health and the environment, natural resource damages and
occupational safety and health. Although compliance with these laws and regulations may affect our costs of
operations, compliance costs to date have not been material. We have environmental remediation liabilities
at some of our owned operating facilities and have been designated as a potentially responsible party (“PRP”)
with respect to certain third-party Superfund waste disposal sites. Additionally, we have been notified that we
may be a PRP with respect to other Superfund sites as to which no proceedings have been instituted against
us. Neither the exact amount of remediation costs nor the final method of their allocation among all designated
PRPs at these Superfund sites have been determined. The liability for future environmental remediation costs
is evaluated by management on a quarterly basis. We accrue amounts for environmental remediation costs that
represent management’s best estimate of the probable and reasonably estimable costs related to environmental
remediation. During fiscal 2003, an additional $1.75 million was accrued for one of our current operating
facilities and for a manufacturing site of a former subsidiary of Talley Industries, Inc. Also related to the former
Talley subsidiary site, a $2.25 million other asset was recorded as the fair value of land received as part of the
settlement in a bankruptcy proceeding of a claim under an indemnification agreement. No other accruals
were made during fiscal 2003 or 2002. For fiscal 2001, the liability for environmental remediation costs was
increased by $0.6 million, which was included in cost of sales. The liabilities recorded for environmental
remediation costs at Superfund sites, at other third party-owned sites and at Carpenter-owned current or former
operating facilities remaining at June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, were $6.8 million, $5.8 million and $8.0 million,
respectively. The estimated range at June 30, 2003 of the reasonably possible future costs of remediation at
Superfund sites, at other third-party-owned sites and at Carpenter-owned current or former operating facilities
is between $6.8 million and $11.3 million.

Estimates of the amount and timing of future costs of environmental remediation requirements are
necessarily imprecise because of the continuing evolution of environmental laws and regulatory requirements,
the availability and application of technology, the identification of currently unknown remediation sites and
the allocation of costs among the PRPs. Based upon information currently available, such future costs are not
expected to have a material effect on Carpenter’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
However, such costs could be material to Carpenter’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows in
a particular future quarter or year.
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Other

We are also defending various claims and legal actions, and are subject to contingencies that are common
to our operations. We provide for costs relating to these matters when a loss is probable and the amount is reasonably
estimable. The effect of the outcome of these matters on our future results of operations and liquidity cannot
be predicted because any such effect depends on future results of operations and the amount and timing
(both as to recording future charges to operations and cash expenditures) of the resolution of such matters.
While it is not feasible to determine the outcome of these matters, management believes that any total ultimate
liability will not have a material effect on our financial position or results of operations and cash flows.

Future Qutlook

Although economic conditions may remain challenging in fiscal 2004, we expect that our cost reduction
and manufacturing improvement initiatives will continue to benefit our operating performance. Based on current
market conditions and excluding the non-cash pension expense, we expect that operating performance will continue
to show improved year-over-year comparisons for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2004. The operating improvement
will be driven primarily by the cost reduction initiatives, as sales growth is expected to be modest due to the
depressed aerospace and power generation markets.

In fiscal 2004, our net pension credit will change to an expense. The net pension expense, which was
actuarially determined on June 30, will be $18 million. This will be a non-cash item, as the company is not required
to make a cash contribution to its defined benefit pension plan. The fiscal 2004 net pension expense primarily
results from the accumulated effect of investment losses from more than two years of declining stock market
returns. The stock market performance coupled with the low interest rate environment resulted in a change of
actuarial assumptions. The changes included a reduction in the expected rate of return to 8.5 percent from
10.0 percent and a lowering of the discount rate to 6.0 percent from 7.25 percent, both of which had the effect
of increasing the company’s net pension expense.

Forward-locking Statements

This Annual Report contains various “Forward-looking Statements” pursuant to the “safe harbor” provisions
of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. These statements, which represent our expectations or
beliefs concerning various future events, include statements concerning future revenues and continued growth
in various market segments. These forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties that could
cause actual results to differ from those projected, anticipated or implied. The most significant of these uncertainties
are described in our Form 10-K. They include but are not limited to: 1) the cyclical nature of the specialty materials
business and certain end-use markets, including aerospace, power generation, automotive, industrial and consumer
durables, all of which are subject to changes in general economic and financial market conditions; 2) the ability
of Carpenter to ensure adequate supplies of raw materials and to recoup increased costs of electricity, natural gas,
and raw materials, such as nickel, through increased prices and surcharges; 3) domestic and foreign excess
manufacturing capacity for certain metals that Carpenter produces; 4) fluctuations in currency exchange rates,
resulting in increased competition and downward pricing pressure on certain Carpenter products; 5) the degree
of success of government trade actions; 6) fluctuations in stock markets which could impact the valuation of the
assets in Carpenter’s pension trusts and the accounting for pension assets; 7) the potential cost advantages that new
competitors or competitors who have reorganized through bankruptcy may have; 8) the transfer of manufacturing
capacity from the United States to foreign countries; and 9) the consolidation of customers and suppliers. Any of
these factors could have an adverse and/or fluctuating effect on our results of operations. The forward-looking
statements in this document are intended to be subject to the safe harbor protection provided by Section 27A of
the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. We
undertake no obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statements.
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Quarterly sales and earnings results are usually influenced by seasonal factors. The first fiscal quarter
(three months ending September 30) is typically the lowest because of annual plant vacation and maintenance
shutdowns in this period by Carpenter and by many of its customers. This seasonal pattern can be disrupted by
economic cycles or special accounting adjustments. The second half of the fiscal year is typically stronger than the
first half.

(dollars and shares in millions, First Second Third Fourth
except per share amounis) Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

Results of Operations

Fiscal 2003
Net sales $ 2138 $  210.2 $ 2346 $ 2125
Gross profits $ 33.6 $ 35.9 $ 35.9 $ 48.3
Net (loss) income $ (10.9) $ (7.1) $ 1.7 $ 5.4
Fiscal 2002(Al
Net sales $ 92511 $ 2489 $  9250.2 $ 2276
Gross profits $ 52.8 $ 46.6 $ 28.0 $ 35.5
Income (loss) before cumulative
effect of accounting change $ 5.9 $ 3.5 8§ (10.5) $ (4.9)
Cumulative effect of accounting
change (112.3) - - ~
Net (loss) income $ (106.4) 8 3.5 £ (10.5) $ (4.9)
Earnings per common share
Fiscal 2003
Basic (loss) earnings $ (0.51) $ (0.34) $ 0.06 0.23
Diluted (loss) earnings $ (0.51) $ (0.34) $ 0.06 0.23
Fiscal 2002(A]
Basic:
Earnings (loss) before cumulative
effect of accounting change $ 0.24 3 0.14 $ (0.49) $ (0.24)
Cumulative effect of accounting
change (5.06) - - -
Net (loss) earnings $ (4.82) $ 0.14 $ (0.49) $ (0.24)
Diluted:
Earnings (loss) before cumulative
effect of accounting change $ 0.24 8 0.14 $ (0.49) $ (0.24)
Cumulative effect of accounting
change (5.06) - - -
Net (loss) earnings $ (4.82) $ 0.14 3 (0.49) $ (0.24)
Weighted average common shares
outstanding (in millions)
Fiscal 2003
Basic 22.3 22.3 22.4 22.4
Diluted 22.3 22.3 22.4 23.1
Fiscal 2002
Basic 22.2 22.2 22.2 22.3
Diluted 23.0 23.0 22.2 22.3

[A] The first quarter of fiscal 2002 includes a cumulative effect of an accounting change relating to goodwill impairment of $112.3 million or
$5.06 per diluted share. See note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Responsibilities for Financial Reporting and Internal Control

Carpenter’s financial statements included in this Annual Report were prepared by management, which is
responsible for their integrity and objectivity. The statements were prepared in conformity with generally accepted
accounting principles in the United States of America and, as such, include amounts based on management’s best
judgments and estimates. Financial information elsewhere in this Annual Report is consistent with that in the
financial statements.

Carpenter maintains a strong system of internal controls, supported by a code of conduct, designed to
provide reasonable assurance that assets are safeguarded and transactions are properly executed and recorded for
the preparation of financial information. There are limits in all systems of internal controls, based on recognition
that the cost of the system should not exceed the benefits to be derived. We believe Carpenter’s system of internal
controls provides this appropriate balance. The system of internal controls and compliance is continually monitored
by Carpenter’s internal audit staff.

The consolidated financial statements in this annual report have been audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP,
Independent Auditors, engaged by the Audit/Finance Committee of the Board of Directors. Their report appears below.

The Audit/Finance Committee of the Board of Directors, composed of independent directors who are
neither current nor former employees of Carpenter, meets regularly with management, Carpenter’s internal auditors
and our independent auditors to consider audit results and to discuss significant internal control, auditing and
financial reporting matters. Both the independent auditors and internal auditors have unrestricted access to the
Audit/Finance Committee.

o

Robert J. Torcolini
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

Terrence E. Geremski
Senior Vice President — Finance and Chief Financial Officer

Report of Independent Auditors
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Carpenter Technology Corporation:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheet and the related consolidated statements
of operations, of comprehensive income (loss), of changes in stockholders’ equity and of cash flows present fairly,
in all material respects, the financial position of Carpenter Technology Corporation and its subsidiaries at June 30,
2003 and 2002, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended June 30, 2003, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management; our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management,
and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for the opinion expressed above.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, on July 1, 2001, Carpenter adopted
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142, “Goodwill and Cther Intangible Assets”.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania
September 3, 2003
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CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated Statement of Operations

Carpenter Technology Corporation
For the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001

(in millions, except per share data) 2003 2002 2001
Net sales $ 871.1 $ 9771 $ 1,324.1
Cost of sales 717.4 814.2 1,088.0
Gross profit $ 153.7 $ 1629 $ 2861
Selling and administrative expenses 118.8 142.1 153.7
Special charge 30.6 - 36.0
Interest expense 3L.0 34.6 40.3
Other income, net (3.8) (0.5) (2.3)

(Loss) income before income taxes and cumulative effect

of accounting changes (22.9) (13.3) 58.4
Income tax (benefit) expense (12.0) (7.3) 23.2
(Loss) income before cumulative effect of accounting changes {10.9) (6.0) 35.2

Cumulative effect of accounting changes, net of $9.4 million
tax benefit in fiscal 2001 - (112.8) (14.1)

Net (loss) income $  (10.9) $ (118.3) $ 21.1

Net (loss) earnings per common share:

Basic:
(Loss) earnings before cumulative effect

of accounting changes $ (0.56) $ (0.35) $ 1.52
Cumulative effect of accounting changes — (5.06) (0.64)
Nert (loss) earnings $ (0.56) $ (5.41) $ 0.88
Diluted:
(Loss) earnings before cumulative effect
of accounting changes $ (0.56) $ (0.35) $ 1.50
Cumulative effect of accounting changes - (5.06) (0.62)
Net (loss) earnings $ (0.56) 8 (5.41) $ 0.88

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.




Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Carpenter Technology Corporation
For the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001

ANNUAL REPOQORT 2003

(in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Operations
Net (loss) income $(10.9) $ (118.3) $ 21.1
Adjustments to reconcile net (loss) income
to net cash provided from operations:
Depreciation 53.3 56.5 55.6
Amortization 10.7 11.2 16.9
Goodwill impairment charge - 112.3 -
Deferred income taxes (14.7) 9.2 11.1
Net pension credit (3.4) (17.1) (40.3)
Net loss (gain) on asset disposals 0.2 4.4 (1.5)
Special charge (non-cash) 24.6 - 37.6
Changes in assets and liabilities:
Receivables 18.7 50.5 (7.2)
Net change in accounts receivable purchase facility - 10.0 -
Inventories 8.2 51.2 27.8
Other current assets 9.8 (10.2) 1.1
Accounts payable (11.7) (5.5) (15.0)
Accrued current liabilities (2.2) (5.1 2.2
Income tax refund 18.3 9.0 11.1
Other, net (8.7) (16.4) (1.9)
Net cash provided from operations 92.2 143.7 118.6
Imvesting Activities
Purchases of plant, equipment and software (8.5) (26.7) (50.5)
Proceeds from disposals of plant and equipment 2.5 0.6 15.3
Proceeds from sales of businesses 8.5 3.0 —
Net cash provided from (used for) investing activities 2.5 (23.1) (35.2)
Financing Activities
Net change in short-term debt (1.7 (154.4) (49.3)
Net proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 88.0 98.3 -
Payments on long-term debt (145.8) (25.6) (10.6)
Checks not cleared 3.7 - -
Dividends paid (14.5) (31.0) (80.7)
Proceeds from issuance of common stock - 3.0 5.5
Net cash used for financing activities (60.3) (109.7) (85.1)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents 0.4 - -
Increase {Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 34.8 10.9 (1.7)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 18.7 7.8 9.5
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 53.5 $ 18.7 $ 7.8

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

Carpenter Technology Corporation
For the years ended June 30, 2003 and 2002

(in millions, except share data) 2003 2002
Assets
Current assets: ‘
Cash and cash equivalents $ 53.5 $ 187
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts
of $3.2 and $2.6 at Junie 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively 113.8 183.7
Inventories 180.9 190.0
Other current assets 21.1 33.5
Total current assets 369.3 375.9
Property, plant and equipment, net 651.7 713.1
Prepaid pension cost 253.7 255.9
Goodwill 46.3 46.3
Trademarks and trade names, net 25.4 26.4
Other assets 53.5 61.9
Total assets $ 1,399.9 $1,479.5
Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Short-term debt $ 17.1 $ 168
Current portion of long-term debt 0.1 50.2
Accounts payable £8.2 76.8
Accrued liabilities 60.2 61.1
Deferred income taxes 4.3 5.9
Total current liabilities 149.9 210.8
Long-term debt, net of current portion 378.9 375.8
Accrued postretirement benefits 182.4 167.8
Deferred income taxes 166.7 182.3
Other liabilities 47.4 345
Total liabilities 925.3 971.2
Stockholders’ Equity
Convertible preferred stock — authorized 2,000,000 shares 10.2 24.4

Common stock — authorized 100,000,000 shares; issued
23,451,719 shares and 23,450,019 shares at June 30, 2003

and 2002, respectively 117.3 117.3
Capital in excess of par value — common stock 199.8 200.1
Reinvested earnings 203.7 229.0
Common stock in treasury (1,114,849 shares and 1,104,295

shares at June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively), at cost (38.3) (38.3)
Deferred compensation (3.8) (11.7)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (14.3) (12.5)

Total stockholders’ equity 474.6 508.3
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 1,399.9 $1,479.5

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity

Carpenter Technology Corporation

For the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001

(in millions, except per share data)

Balances at June 30, 2000

Net income
Cash dividends:
Common @ $1.32 per share
Preferred @ $5,362.50 per share
Stock options exercised
Other

Common Stock

Convertible

Preferred Capital in

Stock Par Par Value Excessof  Reinvested
Value of $5 of $5 Par Value Earnings

$ 26.0 $115.4 $192.2 $388.0
21.1

(29.1)
(1.6)

0.8 3.1

06) 01 1.4

Balances at June 3¢, 2001

Net (loss)
Cash dividends:
Common @ $1.32 per share
Preferred @ $5,362.50 per share
Stock options exercised
Other

$ 25.4 $116.3 $196.7 $378.4
(118.3)

(29.2)
(1.9)
0.7 2.3
(1.0) 03 1.1

Balances at June 30, 2002

Net (loss)
Cash dividends:
Common @ $0.5775 per share
Preferred @ $5,362.50 per share
Stock options exercised
Minimum pension liability, net of tax
Record Guarantee by Carpenter in
non-current liabilities
Other

$ 24.4 $117.3 $200.1 $229.0
(10.9)

(12.8)
(1.6)

(12.0)
(2.9) (0.3)

Balances at June 30, 2003

$10.2 $117.3 $199.8 $203.7 $(38.3) $(3.8) $(14.3)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

$(38.4) $(14.1) $(15.5)

$(38.4) $(13.1) $(16.7)

$(38.3) $(11.7) $(12.5)
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Consclidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders’ Equity (continued)

Carpenter Technology Corporation
For the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001

Common Shares

Preferred Net
Shares Issued Issued Treasury Qutstanding
Balances at June 30, 2600 413.1 23,071,635 (1,107,200) 21,964,435
Stock options exercised 154,230 154,230
Other (9.1) 41,654 (1,047) 40,607
Balances at June 30, 2001 404.0 23,267,519 (1,108,247) 22,159,272
Stock options exercised 144,900 144,900
Other (15.6) 37,600 3,952 41,552
Balances at June 30, 2002 388.4 23,450,019 (1,104,295) 22,345,724
Stock options exercised 1,200 1,200
Other (34.8) 500 (10,544) (10,054)
Balances at June 30, 2003 353.6 23,451,719 (1,114,849) 22,336,870
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive (Loss) Income
Carpenter Technology Corporation
For the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001
(in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Net (loss) income $ (10.9) $(118.3) $ 211
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle for
derivatives and hedging activities (SFAS 133), net of tax - - 0.8
Net (losses) gains on derivative instruments, net of tax (2.4) 4.0 (2.3)
Minimum pension liability, net of tax (1.5) - -
Unrealized loss on investment, net of tax - - (0.1)
Foreign currency translation, net of tax 2.1 0.2 0.4
Comprehensive (loss) income $ (12.7) $(114.1) $ 199

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

NOTES TGO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Consolidation — The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Carpenter and all
majority-owned subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions are eliminated. Investments
in companies in which Carpenter exercises significant influence, but which it does not control (generally a
20 to 50 percent ownership interest), are accounted for on the equity method of accounting and Carpenter’s
share of their income or loss is included in other income, net in the consolidated statement of operations.

Revenue Recognition — Revenue, net of related discounts and allowances, is recognized when product is
shipped and title and risk of loss has transferred to the customer.

Freight and Handling Fees and Costs — Freight and handling costs billed separately to customers are included as
part of sales, and freight and handling costs expensed are included as part of cost of sales on the consolidated

statement of operations.

Owerhaul Costs— Major maintenance costs incurred during scheduled plant shutdowns are capitalized when incurred
and amortized over the period until the next scheduled shutdown, which is generally within the same fiscal year.
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Research and Development — Research and development expenditures, which amounted to $11.7, $12.9 and
$14.7 million in fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively, are expensed as incurred and reported in selling and
administrative expenses in the Consolidated Statement of Operations. Substantially all development costs are
related to developing new products or designing significant improvements to existing products.

Cash Eguivalents — Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid instruments with maturities at the time of acquisition
of three months or less. Cash equivalents are stated at cost, which approximates market.

Inventories — Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market. Cost for inventories is principally determined
by the Last-In, First:-Out (LIFO) method. Carpenter also uses the First-In, First-Out (FIFO) and average cost methods.

Fixed Assets and Depreciation — Fixed assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation
for financial reporting purposes is computed by the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of
the assets. Depreciation for income tax purposes is computed using accelerated methods. Upon disposal,
assets and related depreciation are removed from the accounts and the differences between the net amounts
and proceeds from disposal are included in other income, net in the consolidated statement of operations.

Computer Software and Amortization — Computer software is included in other assets on the consolidated balance
sheet, and is amortized for financial reporting purposes on a straight-line basis over the respective estimated
useful lives, ranging principally from 3 to 10 years.

Goodwill — Goodwill, representing the excess of the cost over the net tangible and identifiable intangible
assets of acquired businesses, is stated at cost.

Goodwill is not amortized, but instead is tested for impairment, at least annually. Potential impairment is identified
by comparing the fair value of a reporting unit to its carrying value, including goodwill. The fair value is esti-
mated based upon discounted cash flow analysis and the use of market multiples. If the carrying value of the
reporting units exceeds its fair value, any impairment loss is measured by comparing the carrying value of the
reporting unit’s goodwill to its implied fair value.

Trademarks and Trade Names — The costs of trademarks and trade names are amortized on a straightline
basis over the 30 year estimated useful life of these finite-lived assets.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets — Long-lived assets, including property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets subject to amortization, are reviewed for impairment and written down to fair value whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable through future undiscounted
cash flows. The amount of the impairment loss is the excess of the carrying amount of the impaired assets
over the fair value of the assets based upon discounted future cash flows.

Environmental Expenditures — Environmental expenditures that pertain to current operations or to future revenues
are expensed or capitalized consistent with Carpenter’s capitalization policy for property, plant and equipment.
Expenditures that result from the remediation of an existing condition caused by past operations and that
do not contribute to current or future revenues are expensed. Liabilities are recognized for remedia} activities
when the remediation is probable and the cost can be reasonably estimated. Recoveries of expenditures for
environmental remediation are recognized as assets only when recovery is deemed probable. Estimated liabilities
are not discounted to present value, but estimated assets are measured on a discounted basis.

Derivative Financial Instruments — All derivative instruments are recorded on the balance sheet at their fair
value and changes in fair value are recorded each period in current earnings or comprehensive income.
Carpenter enters into derivative financial instruments to hedge certain anticipated transactions, firm
commitments, or assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. Additionally, Carpenter utilizes
interest rate swaps to convert floating rate debt to fixed rate, or to convert fixed rate debt to floating rate.

Foreign Currency Translation — Assets and liabilities of most foreign operations are translated at exchange
rates in effect at year-end, and their income statements are translated at the average monthly exchange rates
prevailing during the year. Translation gains and losses are recorded each period in other comprehensive
income (loss) until the foreign entity is sold or liquidated.

Deferred Income Taxes — Deferred income taxes are recognized by applying enacted statutory tax rates, applicable
to future years, to temporary differences between the tax bases and financial statement carrying values of
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Carpenter’s assets and liabilities. Valuation allowances are recorded to reduce deferred tax assets to amounts
that are more likely than not to be realized.

Earnings per Share — Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing net earnings available to common
shareholders by the weighted average number of shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per
share is calculated by dividing net earnings by the weighted average number of shares outstanding for the
period, adjusted for the effect of an assumed exercise of all dilutive stock options at the end of the period.

Litigation — Periodically, Carpenter and its subsidiaries are parties to lawsuits arising out of the normal course of
business. Carpenter records liabilities when a loss is probable and can be reasonably estimated. These estimates
are based on an analysis made by internal and external legal counsel considering information known at the time.

Stock-Based Compensation — As of June 30, 2003, Carpenter has three stock-based employee compensation
plans, which are described in detail in Note 15. Carpenter accounts for those plans under the recognition
and measurement principles of APB Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees”, and related
Interpretations. No stock-based employee compensation cost is reflected in net (loss) income, as all options
granted under those plans had an exercise price equal to the market value of the underlying common stock
on the date of grant. The following table illustrates the effect on net (loss) income and (loss) earnings per share
if Carpenter had applied the fair value recognition provisions of Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB)
Statement No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”, to stock-based employee compensation.

(in millions, except per share data) 2003 2002 2001
Net (loss) income as reported $ (10.9) $ (118.3) $ 211
Total stock-based employee compensation expense
determined under fair value based method for all awards,
net of related tax effect (1.1) (2.7) (0.8)
Pro forma net (loss) income $ (12.0) $ (121.0) $ 203
(Loss) earnings per share:
Basic — as reported $ (0.56) $ (54D $ 088
Basic — pro forma $ (0.61) $ (5.53) $ 084
Diluted — as reported $ (0.56) $ (54D $ 088
Diluted — pro forma $ (0.861) $ (553 $ 084

These pro forma adjustments were calculated using the Black-Scholes option pricing model to value all
stock options granted since July 1, 1996. A summary of the assumptions and data used in these calculations follows:

2003 2002 2001

Weighted average exercise price of options exercisable $ 31.41 $ 33.67 $ 33.65
Weighted average fair value per share of options $ 3.08 $ 515 $ 7.09
Fair value assumptions:

Risk-free interest rate 2.7% 4.3% 4.9%

Expected volatility 34.0% 36.1% 82.7%

Expected life of options 5 years 5 years 5 years

Expected dividends 2.9% 5.9% 4.4%

Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts of assets and liabilities
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Reclassifications — Certain reclassifications of prior years’ amounts have been made to conform with the current
year’s presentation.

Accounting Changes — In June 2001, the FASB issued Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142,
“Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets” which primarily addresses the accounting for goodwill and intangible
assets subsequent to their acquisiton. Under SFAS 142, goodwill and intangible assets with indefinite lives are
no longer amortized, and are tested for impairment at least annually. Carpenter elected early implementation
of SFAS 142 in fiscal 2002. Carpenter recorded a charge of $112.3 million ($5.06 per diluted share) to reduce
the carryving value of its goodwill as of the beginning of fiscal 2002. The charge is reflected as a cumulative
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effect of an accounting change in the accompanying consolidated statement of operations. For additional
discussion on the impact of adopting SFAS 142, see Note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

Effective July 1, 2000, Carpenter changed its method of accounting for revenue recognition in accordance
with the guidance of the Securities and Exchange Commission’s Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 101 (SAB
101), “Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements”. Carpenter’s standard terms of sale for most of its sales
included a provision that title to the goods was retained as a security interest until payment was received, even
though the risks and benefits of ownership were passed to the customer at the time of shipment. Under SAB
101, except for certain foreign subsidiaries, revenue cannot be recognized until title passes to the customer,
which in Carpenter’s case was when payment was received.

On April 1, 2001, Carpenter changed its terms of sale to eliminate the retention of a security interest, so that
revenue is recognized when product is shipped. The combined effect of SAB 101 and the change in terms of
sale increased fiscal 2001 sales by $138.0 million and income before cumulative effect of accounting change
by $14.1 million, net of $9.4 million of tax.

New Accounting Pronouncements — In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45 (FIN
45), “Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees
of Indebtedness to Others”. This interpretation elaborates on the disclosures to be made by a guarantor in
its interim and annual financial statements about its obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued.
FIN 45 also clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize, at the inception of a guarantee, a liability for the
fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. Carpenter adopted the initial recognition and
inirial measurement provisions effective january 1, 2003 and adopted the disclosure requirements of FIN 45
during the six months ended December 31, 2002. The adoption of FIN 45 had no material affect on the
Company’s results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

In January 2003, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Statement of Financial Accounting
Standards No. 148 (SFAS 148), “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation—Transition and Disclosure”
which amends SFAS 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation”. SFAS 148 provides alternative methods
of transition for a voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee
compensation. In addition, SFAS 148 amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS 123 to require prominent
disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based
employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. Carpenter adopted the
disclosure requirements effective January 1, 2003. The adoption of SFAS 148 had no material affect on the
Company’s results of operations, financial position or cash flows.

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149 (SFAS 149), “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative
Instruments and Hedging Activities”. SFAS 149 amends and clarifies financial accounting and reporting for
derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other contracts, for the hedging
activities within the scope of SFAS 133. The standard is effective for contracts entered into or modified after
June 30, 2003, with certain exceptions, and for hedging relationships designated after June 30. The guidance,
with certain exceptions, is to be applied prospectively. The Company does not believe that the adoption of
SFAS 149 will have a material impact on its results of operations or financial position.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150 (SFAS 150), “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with
Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity”. SFAS 150 is effective for financial instruments entered into or
modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning
after June 15, 2003. SFAS 150 establishes standards for how an issuer classifies and measures certain financial
instruments with characteristics of both liabilities and equity. It requires that an issuer classify a financial
instrument that is within its scope as a liability (or an asset in some circumstances). The Company does not
believe that the adoption of SFAS 150 will have a material effect on its consolidated results of operations or
financial position.
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2. Earnings (Loss) Per Common Share

The calculations of earnings (loss) per share for the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001 are shown
below. No calculations are presented for the diluted losses per share for fiscal 2003 or 2002 since the assumed
conversion of preferred shares and the assumed exercise of stock options would be anti-dilutive.

(in millions, except per share data) 2003 2002 2001
Basic EPS:
(Loss) income before cumulative effect of accounting changes $ (10.9) $ (6.0 $ 352
Dividends accrued on convertible preferred stock, net of

tax benefits (1.6) (1.8) (1.7
{Loss) earnings available for common stockholders (12.5) (7.8) 33.5
Cumulative effect of accounting changes - (112.3) (14.1)
Net (loss) income available for common stockholders $ (12.5) $(120.1) $ 194
Weighted average common shares outstanding 22.3 22.2 22.0
(Loss) earnings per share before cumulative

effect of accounting changes $ (0.56) $ (0.35) $ 1.52
Cumulative effect of accounting changes per share - (5.06) (0.64)
Basic net (loss) earnings per share $ (0.58) $ (5.41) $ 0.88
Diluted EPS:
Income before cumulative effect of accounting change $ 352
Assumed shortfall between common and preferred dividends (0.7)
Earnings available for common stockholders 34.5
Cumulative effect of accounting change (14.1)
Net income available for common stockholders $ 204
Weighted average common shares outstanding 22.0
Assumed conversion of preferred shares 0.8
Effect of shares issuable under stock option plans 0.1
Adjusted weighted average common shares 22.9
(Loss) earnings per share before cumulative effect of

accounting changes $ (0.56) $ (0.35) $ 150
Cumulative effect of accounting changes per share - (5.06) {0.62)
Diluted net (loss) earnings per share $ (0.56) $ (5.41) $ 0.88

In fiscal 2001, 1.4 million stock options were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per share
because the exercise prices of the then outstanding options were above the average market price for the related periods.

3. Special Charge

Fiscal Year 2003

During fiscal 2003, Carpenter incurred a special charge of $30.6 million before taxes. These charges
were incurred as part of the Company’s strategy to reduce costs and improve operational effectiveness. The

components of this special charge are indicated below.

(in mellions) Cash Non-Cash Total

Reductions in workforce $ 25 $ 149 $ 174
Pension plan curtailment loss - 6.7 6.7
Loss on early retirement of debt 3.5 1.0 4.5
Writedown of certain assets - 2.0 2.0
Special charge $ 6.0 £ 246 $ 306
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¢ Reductions in workforce: This item represents the elimination of approximately 500 salaried and hourly positions,
which were substantially complete as of December 31, 2002. The charge of $17.4 million consisted primarily
of various personnel-related costs to cover severance payments, enhanced pension benefits, medical coverage
and related items. Approximately $14.9 million of the charge will be paid from the Company’s qualified pension
plan and did not impact the Company’s operating cash flow and is, therefore, considered non-cash. This portion
of the special charge reduced prepaid pension cost on the consolidated balance sheet.

e Curtailment loss of $6.7 million: This item is related to the effects of the above workforce reduction on the
qualified pension plan. The curtailment loss is comprised of increases to the projected benefit obligations and
a recognition of related prior service costs. As a result of this charge, prepaid pension cost on the consolidated
balance sheet has been correspondingly reduced by $6.7 million.

° Loss on early redemption debt: In May 2003, Carpenter issued $100 million of 10-year senior unsecured notes
with a coupon of 6.625 percent. Proceeds from the sale of the notes were used to redeem approximately
$90 million of Carpenter’s 9 percent debentures due 2022, which had a mandatory sinking fund requirement
of $5 million annually between 2003 and 2021. The debentures were callable at a price of 103.82 percent plus
accrued interest through the redemption date. The remaining proceeds were used for general corporate
purposes. In connection with the early redemption, a special charge of $4.5 million was recorded including
approximately $1.0 million related to the recognition of unamortized discount and issue costs.

° Writedown of $2.0 million of certain assets reclassified as held-for-sale: Assets held-for-sale are included with
other current assets on the consolidated balance sheet and are included in Corporate Assets in the segment
data. Prior to the writedown, the net book value of these assets was $5.2 million. Primarily all of these assets
were sold during fiscal year 2003. As of September 30, 2002, depreciation on these assets ceased.

Fiscal Year 2001

During the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001, Carpenter incurred a special charge of $37.6 million before
taxes that was recognized in the consolidated statement of operations as a separate $36.0 million special
charge, an addition to cost of sales of $1.2 million as a result of a writedown of inventory and an addition to
selling and administrative expenses of $0.4 million due to a writedown of accounts receivable. The components
of this special charge are indicated below.

(in mallions) Cash Non-Cash Total
Writedown of certain Engineered Products Group assets
Long-lived assets $ - $ 15.7 $ 157
Inventory - 1.2 1.2
Other current and non-current assets - 1.0 1.0
Exit costs - 1.0 1.0
Accounts receivable - 0.4 0.4
Reductions in workforce 2.3 6.8 9.1
Writeoff of Specialty Alloys Operations construction in progress - 1.7 1.7
Bridgeport settlement agreement - 7.5 7.5
Special charge $ 23 $ 35.3 $ 376

¢ Due to the pending divestiture of four Engineered Products Group (EPG) business units that were considered
non-strategic, the Company recorded a charge of $19.3 million, consisting of $15.7 million in writedowns of
long-lived assets, $1.2 million in writedowns of inventory, $0.4 million in writedowns of accounts receivable,
$1.0 million in writedowns of other current and non-current assets, and $1.0 million for related exit costs.
The $15.7 million writedown of long-lived assets consisted of machinery and equipment — $9.2 million (book
value prior to writedown of $12.7 million), buildings — $2.1 million (book value prior to writedown of $2.5
million), land — $0.3 million (book value prior to writedown of $0.3 million), and goodwill — $4.1 million
(book value prior to writedown of $4.1 million). The book value of other current and non-current assets prior to the
writedown was $1.1 million. These business units had combined fiscal 2001 annual sales and a net operating loss
(before the special charge) of $25.0 million and $3.0 million, respectively. Operating results of these EPG business
units were immaterial for fiscal years 2003 and 2002. As of June 30, 2003, all four of the EPG business units have
been sold — one in October 2001, the second in January 2002 and the remaining two during fiscal year 2003.

|

{
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o Carpenter implemented a reduction in its workforce of approximately 100 salaried positions as a result of the
realignment of Specialty Alloys Operations (SAC) and Corporate staff. As of June 30, 2002, this workforce
reduction was complete. The charge of $9.1 million consisted primarily of various personnel-related costs to
cover severance payments, enhanced pension benefits, medical coverage and related items. Of this charge,
$6.8 million will be paid from the qualified pension plan and, accordingly, this portion of the special charge
reduced prepaid pension cost on the consolidated balance sheet. There was also a $1.7 million charge
to writeoff certain SAO construction in progress due to the decision in the fourth quarter of fiscal 2001 to
discontinue a capital project.

e Carpenter incurred a non-cash charge of $7.5 million before taxes as a result of a May 2001 settlement agreement
reached with the City of Bridgeport, Connecticut, and the Bridgeport Port Authority in connection with the
disposal of Carpenter’s former steel mill property in Bridgeport. Under the settlement agreement, Carpenter
received $9.25 million and retained responsibility for an existing oil deposit on the property, except to the
extent the oil deposit is disturbed by the City of Bridgeport or the Bridgeport Port Authority or a third party
acting on their behalf to develop the site.

The major components of the fiscal 2003 and fiscal 2001 special charges and the remaining outstanding
balances at June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001 are as follows:

Early Debt
Termination  Curtailment Retirement Asset
Benefits Loss Costs Writedowns Total
Special charge $ 9.1 $ - $ - $285 $37.6
Transfers against assets (6.8) - ~ (28.5) (35.3)
June 30, 2001 2.3 - - - 2.3
Payments (2.3) - - - (2.3)
June 30, 2002 - - - - -
Special charge 17.4 6.7 4.5 2.0 30.6
Payments (2.5) - (3.5) - (6.0)
Transfers against assets (14.9) (6.7) (1.0) (2.0) (24.6)
June 39, 206063 $ - $ - $ - $ - $ -
4, Inventories
June 30
(in millions) 2003 2002
Raw materials and supplies $ 30.7 $ 29.1
Work in process 87.3 90.1
Finished and purchased products £2.9 70.8
$180.9 $ 190.0

If the first-in, first-out method of inventory had been used instead of the LIFO method, inventories would
have been $118.6 and $109.0 million higher as of June 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. Current cost of LIFO-valued
inventories was $249.9 million at june 30, 2003 and $233.9 million at June 30, 2002. The reductions in LIFO-valued
inventories increased cost of sales by $0.4 million and $9.0 million before taxes during fiscal 2003 and 2002,
respectively. In fiscal 2001, the reductions in LIFO-valued inventories decreased cost of sales by $0.7 million
before taxes.
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5. Property, Plant and Equipment

June 30

(in millions) 2003 2002
Land $ 6.4 $ 7.5
Buildings and building equipment 234.5 236.3
Machinery and equipment 1,096.8 1,102.2
Construction in progress 5.9 8.9
Total at cost 1,343.6 1,354.9
Less accurnulated depreciation and amortization 691.9 641.8

$ 651.7 § 7131

The estimated useful lives of depreciable assets are as follows:

Land improvements 20 years
Buildings and building equipment 20 — 45 years
Machinery and equipment 5 — 30 years
Autos and trucks 3 - 6 years
Office furniture and equipment 3~ 10 years

6. Goodwill and Trademarks and Tradenames, Net

Gooduwill

In connection with Carpenter’s adoption of SFAS 142 on July 1, 2001, Carpenter reviewed the classification
of its goodwill and other intangible assets, reassessed the useful lives previously assigned to other intangible
assets, and discontinued amortization of goodwill. Carpenter also tested goodwill for impairment by comparing
fair values of the reporting units to their carrying values as of July 1, 2001. As a result of this comparison, a
$112.3 million impairment charge was recorded as of July 1, 2001.

Carpenter conducted its annual impairment review during the fourth quarter of 2003 and 2002 and
determined that there was no additional goodwill impairment.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill by reportable segment for the years ended June 30, 2003
and 2002 are as follows:

(in millions) Specialty Engineered
etals Products
Segment Segment Total

Balance as of June 30, 2001 $ 1500 $ 117 $ 161.7
Decrease due to a change in estimate relating to the realization

of certain tax assets for a previously acquired company (2.8) - (2.8)
Impairment charge (112.3) - (112.3)
Other (0.3) - (0.3)
Balance as of June 30, 2002 $ 346 $ 117 3 46.3
Balance as of June 30, 2003 $ 346 $ 117 $ 48.3

The $112.3 million transitional impairment charge or $5.06 per diluted share was recognized as a
cumulative effect of an accounting change as of the beginning of fiscal 2002. Fair value of the reporting units
was estimated on July 1, 2001 based upon discounted cash flow analyses and the use of market multiples. The
fair value of certain reporting units was less than their carrying value.

Also, effective July 1, 2001 goodwill was no longer amortized. The total amount of goodwill amortization
recorded by Carpenter in fiscal 2001 was $6.7 million. Had amortization not been recorded for any period
presented, net income and earnings per share would have been as follows.
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(in millions, except per share data) 2003 2002 2001
Reported net (loss) income $ (10.9) $ (118.3) $ 211
Goodwill amortization - - 6.7
Adjusted net (loss) income $ (10.9) $ (118.3) $ 27.8
Basic (loss) earnings per share:
Reported net (loss) earnings $ (0.56) $ (541 $ 088
Goodwill amortization - - 0.29
Adjusted net (loss) earnings $ (0.56) $  (5.41) $ 117
Dituted (loss) earnings per share:
Reported net (loss) earnings $ (0.56) $ (541 4 0.8
Goodwill amortization - - 0.28
Adjusted net (loss) earnings $ (0.56) $ (541 3 1.16

Trademarks and Tradenames, Net

June 30

(in millions) 2003 2002
Trademarks and tradenames, at cost $ 32.0 $32.0
Less accumulated amortization 6.6 5.6
Trademarks and tradenames, net $ 25.4 $26.4

Carpenter recorded $1.0 million of amortization expense in fiscal years 2003, 2002 and 2001. The estimated
annual amortization expense for each of the succeeding five fiscal years is $1.0 million.

7. Debt

As part of Carpenter's debt refinancing strategy designed to enhance liquidity, Carpenter entered into a
series of financing arrangements during fiscal 2002. In August 2001, Carpenter issued $100 million of 10-year
medium-term notes with a coupon of 7.625 percent. Carpenter used the proceeds from the sale of the notes to
reduce the outstanding principal amount under its short-term revolving credit agreements.

In November 2001, Carpenter entered into a $125 million five-year unsecured credit facility
(“Committed Facility”) and a $75 millicn 364-day unsecured credit facility (“364-day Facility”). Borrowings under
each of the facilities accrue at either a base rate or LIBOR plus applicable margin. The facilities contain two financial
covenants, a debt-to-capital test and an EBITDA-to-interest coverage test. At June 30, 2003, the Company had no
amounts outstanding under its Committed Facility, and $10.6 million of outstanding letters of credit. At June 30, 2003,
the Company had $17.0 million outstanding on its 364-day Facility.

On September 3, 2002, Carpenter and its lenders amended the Committed Facility. The amendment
reduced the minimum coverage under the EBITDA-to-interest covenant for the trailing four quarterly periods
ended September 30, 2002, December 31, 2002, and March 31, 2003. Thereafter, the covenant reverted to the
original terms under the Committed Facility.

Also on September 3, 2002, the Company entered into a $75 million, 364-day unsecured credit facility which
replaced the expiring 364-day Facility. The terms and conditions of the new 364-day facility are essentially the same
as those contained in the Company's amended Committed Facility.

In May 2003, Carpenter issued $100 million of 10-year senior unsecured notes with a coupon of 6.625
percent. Proceeds from the sale of the notes were used to redeem approximately $90 million of Carpenter’s 9 percent
debentures due 2022. The refinancing eliminates a mandatory sinking fund requirement of $5 million annually
between 2003 and 2021. The debentures were callable at a price of 103.82 percent plus accrued interest through
the redemption date. The remaining proceeds were used for general corporate purposes. In connection with the
early redemption, a special charge of $4.5 million was recorded, including unamortized discount and debt
issuance costs. In addition, Carpenter paid $1.1 million in fees associated with the debt issuance.

Based upon its current cash position and expected future liquidity needs, Carpenter did not renew the
364-day facility which expired on September 3, 2003.

|
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For the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, interest cost totaled $31.1 million, $34.9 million and
$41.1 million, of which $0.1 million, $0.3 million and $0.8 million, respectively, were capitalized as part of the cost
of plant, equipment and software.

The weighted average interest rates for short-term borrowings during fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001 were
5.7 percent, 3.3 percent and 6.2 percent, respectively.

Long-term debt outstanding at June 30, 2003 and 2002, consists of the following:

June 30

(in millions) 2003 2002
Senior unsecured notes, 6.625% due May 2018 $ 99.1 $ -
Medium-term notes, Series B at 6.28% to 7.10% due from April

2003 to 2018 (face value of $152.0 million at June 30, 2003) 156.6 198.0
9% Sinking fund debentures due 2022, callable beginning

in March 2002 at 104.2% - 99.7
Medium-term notes, Series C at 7.625% due 2011 (face

value of $99.5 million at June 30, 2003) 101.9 99.5
Medium-term notes, Series A at 6.95% due June 2005 20.0 20.0
Other 1.4 8.8
Total 379.0 426.0
Less amounts due within one year 0.1 50.2
Long-term debt, net of current portion $ 378.9 ¥ 3758

A portion of the Series B and C notes are associated with the fixed to floating interest rate swaps. Therefore,
the carrying value of the debt has been adjusted to reflect the underlying value of the swaps in accordance with
fair value hedge accounting (see Note 9).

Aggregate maturities of long-term debt for the four years subsequent to June 30, 2004, are $40.3 million
in fiscal 2005, $1.6 million in fiscal 2006, $0.3 million in fiscal 2007 and $33.8 million in fiscal 2008.

8. Accounts Receivable Purchase Facility

In December 2001, Carpenter entered into a $75 million three-year accounts receivable purchase facility
(“Purchase Facility”) with an independent financial institution. In March 2003, Carpenter reduced this facility to
$50 million. Pursuant to the terms of the Purchase Facility, Carpenter sells a participating interest in certain accounts
receivable to the independent financial institution. These transactions are treated as sales under SFAS No. 140,
“Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishments of Liabilities”.

During 2002, Carpenter sold a pardcipating interest of $10.0 million to the independent financial institution.
Carpenter used the cash received from the sale to pay down debt. Total fiscal 2003 and 2002 expenses relating to
the Purchase Facility were $0.3 million and $0.4 million, respectively.

0. Financial Instruments

The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of Carpenter’s financial instruments were as follows:

June 30
2003 2002

Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
(in millions) Value Value Value Value
Cash and cash equivalents $ 525 $ 535 $ 18.7 $ 187
Company-owned life insurance $ 205 $ 205 $ 268 $ 268
Short-term debt $ 17.1 $ 17.1 $ 168 $ 168
Long-term debt $ 378.0 $ 388.7 £ 426.0 $ 450.0
Commodity forwards and options $ 5.4 $ 5.4 $ 8.0 $ 8.0
Foreign currency forwards and options $ @0 $ @0 $ (26 $ (2.6)
Interest rate swaps and Treasury locks $ 6.5 $ 6.5 $ 06 $ 06

The carrying amounts for cash, cash equivalents and short-term debt approximate their fair values due
to the short-term maturities of these instruments. The carrying amount for company-owned life insurance reflects
cash surrender values based upon the market values of underlying securities.

«»37 —
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The fair values of long-term debt as of June 30, 2003 and 2002 were determined by using current
interest rates.

The Company formally documents all relationships between its hedging instruments and hedged items,
as well as its risk management objective and strategy for establishing various hedge relationships. The Company
formally assesses, both at the inception of the hedge and on an on-going basis, whether each derivative instrument
is highly effective in offsetting changes in the fair values or cash flows of hedged items.

Carpenter’s current risk management strategies include the use of derivative instruments to reduce certain
risks. These strategies are:

© The use of commodity forwards and options to fix the price of a portion of anticipated future purchases of
certain raw materials and energy to offset the effects of changes in the costs of those commodities.

o The use of foreign currency forwards and options to hedge a portion of anticipated future sales denominated in
foreign currencies, principally the Euro and Pound Sterling, in order to offset the effect of changes in exchange rates.

o The use of foreign currency forwards and options to hedge certain foreign currency denominated intercompany
receivables, primarily in Euro and Pound Sterling, to offset the effect on earnings of changes in exchange
rates until these receivables are collected.

o The use of interest rate swaps to maintain a certain leve] of floating rate debt relative to fixed rate debt.

The Company has designated commodity forwards and options, foreign currency forwards and options
and floating to fixed interest rate swaps as cash flow hedges of anticipated commodity transactions, anticipated foreign
exchange transactions and scheduled interest payments, respectively. Fair values for outstanding derivative instruments
that are designated as cash flow hedges are accumulated in other comprehensive income in stockholders’ equity. The fair
values are released to earnings when the related hedged items impact earnings. Amounts reclassified to the consolidated
statement of operations are included in cost of sales (commodity hedges), interest expense (interest rate swaps)
and sales (foreign currency hedges). If an anticipated transaction is no longer expected to occur, unrealized gains
and losses on the related hedge are reclassified to the consolidated statement of operations. No amounts were
reclassified to earnings during 2003 and 2001. During 2002, net gains of $0.2 million were reclassified from other
comprehensive income to earnings for anticipated purchase transactions that were no longer expected to occur.
The changes in other accumulated other comprehensive income associated with derivative hedging activities during
the year ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001 were as follows:

(in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Balance at July 1 $ 2.5 $ (1.5) $ -
Cumulative adjustment to adopt SFAS 133 - - 0.8
Current period changes in fair value, net of tax 4.3 3.0 (0.3)
Reclassification to earnings, net of tax (6.8) 1.0 (2.0)
Balance at june 30 $ - $ 25 $ (1.5)

The Company has designated fixed to floating interest rate swaps as fair value hedges. Accordingly, the
changes in the fair value of these instruments are immediately recorded in earnings. The mark-to-market values of
both the fair value hedging instruments and the underlying debt obligations are recorded as equal and offsetting
gains and losses in the interest expense component of the statement of operations. The fair value of the
Company’s interest rate swap agreements classified as fair value hedges was $7.0 million at June 30, 2603 and are
included in other assets on the consolidated balance sheet. All existing fair value hedges are highly effective. As
a result, there is no impact to earnings due to hedge ineffectiveness.

The hedges of intercompany receivables denominated in foreign currencies do not qualify for hedge
accounting; therefore the hedges are marked to market on a quarterly basis and any gains or losses are recorded
within other income on the consolidated statement of operations. All unrealized gains or losses on intercompany
receivables denominated in foreign currencies are recorded in other income, net each quarter.

Cash flow and fair value hedges at June 30, 2003 have various settlement dates, the latest of which is an August 2011
interest rate swap. Most of the interest rate swaps contain a put feature whereby the Company can put the swap back to the
counterparty or the counterparty can put the swap back to the Company on the fifth anniversary date of the interest rate swap.

During the year ended June 30, 2002, unrealized net gains totaling $1.1 million after taxes were recorded
in other comprehensive income (loss), and $2.9 million of expenses (net of tax benefits) were reclassified from
other comprehensive income (loss) to the consolidated statement of operations including $0.2 million of net gains
for anticipated raw material purchase transactions which were no longer expected to occur. Any ineffectiveness is
recorded in the consolidated statement of operations. The ineffectiveness for existing derivative instruments for
the years ended June 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001 was immaterial.
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As of June 30, 2003, $0.05 million after taxes of net gains from derivative instruments was included in
accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) of which $1.1 million after taxes is expected to be reclassified

to the consolidated statement of operations within one year.

Carpenter is exposed to credit risk related to its financial instruments in the event of non-performance
by the counterparties. Carpenter does not generally require collateral or other security to support these financial
instruments. However, the counterparties to these transactions are major financial institutions deemed credit worthy
by Carpenter. Carpenter does not anticipate non-performance by the counterparties.

10. Accrued Liabilities

June 30

(in millions) 2003 2002
Compensation $ 135 $ 16.3
Employee benefits 13.3 12.6
Income taxes 6.1 -
Interest 5.4 8.6
Derivative financial instruments 2.4 3.2
Taxes, other than income 2.4 2.1
Environmental costs 2.0 14
Other 15.1 16.9

$ 60.2 § 61.1

11. Pension and Other Postretirement RBenefits

Carpenter provides several noncontributory defined benefit pension plans and postretirement benefit plans to
certain of its employees. The following provides a reconciliation of benefit obligations, plan assets, and funded status of the plans.

Pension Plans

QOther Postretirement Plans

(in millions) 2003 2002 2003 2002
Change in projected benefit obligation

Projected benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 6029 $ 602.5 $ 206.8 $ 189.6
Service cost 14.5 15.4 2.4 2.4
Interest cost 42.2 43.3 15.1 13.6
Benefits paid (62.3) (44.6) (10.7) (13.9)
Actuarial loss 98.2 3.7 47.8 27.0
Plan curtailment 5.6 - 2.3 -
Special termination benefits(a] 14.7 (0.8) 0.2 -
Plan amendments 2.8 (16.6) (59.6) (11.9)
Projected benefit obligation at end of year $ 718.6 $ 602.9 $ 204.3 $ 206.8
mange in plan assets

Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 754.4 $ 886.5 $ 36.9 $ 55.0
Actual return on plan assets 26.8 (90.2) (1.7 (4.2)
Benefits paid from plan assets (62.3) (44.6) (10.7) (13.9)
Contributions 2.6 2.7 - ~
Fair value of plan assets at end of year $ 7215 $ 754.4 $ 245 $ 369
Funded status of the plans $ 2.9 $ 151.5 $ (179.8) $(169.9)
Unrecognized net loss 221.5 76.8 72.1 20.4
Unrecognized prior service cost (benefit) 8.1 6.4 (74.7) (18.6)
Unrecognized transition obligation 0.1 0.1 - -
Prepaid (accrued) benefit cost $ 232.6 $ 234.8 $ (182.4) $ (168.1)
Principal zctuarial assumptions at June 30:

Discount rate 6.0% 7.25% 6.0% 7.25%
Long-term rate of compensation increase 3.5% 4.0% - -
Long-term rate of return on plan assets 8.5% 10.0% 8.5% 10.0%

{A} Benefits provided to employees terminated as a result of a reduction in hourly and salaried work force. See note 3 to the consolidated financial staternents.
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Pension and other postretirement plans included the following net credits and costs components:

Pension Plans Cther Postretirement Plans

(in millions) 2003 2002 2001 2003 2002 2001
Service cost $14.5 $ 15.4 $ 16.0 $ 2.4 $ 24 $ 26
Interest cost 42.2 43.3 43.4 15.1 13.6 13.5
Expected return on plan assets (73.8) (87.3) (90.9) (3.0) (4.9) (7.6)
Amortization of net gain 0.1 (1.3) (13.8) 0.4 - (2.5)
Amortization of prior service cost

(benefit) 0.6 2.7 2.6 (1.9) (1.0) (0.7
Amortization of transition asset - - (2.9) - - -
Net (credit) cost $(16.4) $(27.2) $(45.6) $ 13.0 $10.1 $ 5.3

For segment reporting (see note 19 to the consolidated financial statements), Carpenter reports separately
the net pension credit which represents the income relating to Carpenter’s overfunded defined benefit pension
plan less an expense for the postretirement benefit plans and other underfunded defined benefit pension plans.

Pension Plans

Carpenter has several underfunded plans that are included in the data presented above. As of June 30,
2003 and 2002, the projected benefit obligation of the underfunded plans was $26.7 million and $25.9 million,
the total fair value of assets was $1.2 million and $1.6 million, and the accumulated benefit obligation was
$24.6 million and $23.5 million, respectively.

Carpenter also maintains defined contribution pension and savings plans for substantially all domestic
employees. Company contributions were $5.5 million in fiscal 2008, $7.2 million in fiscal 2002 and $7.4 million
in fiscal 2001. There were 1,437,110 common shares reserved for issuance under the savings plans at June 30, 2003.

Other Postretirement Flans

The postretirement benefit plans consist of health care and life insurance plans. Beginning in june
1999, retired employees benefit payments are being paid by a Voluntary Employee Benefit Association (VEBA).
Prior to 2002, Carpenter contributed discretionary amounts, which have not exceeded the amount deductible for
tax purposes, into the VEBA. Plan assets are invested in trust-owned life insurance, which is invested in equity,
fixed income and money market securities. In 2003, the Company amended its postretirement medical plan to
increase the deductible and coinsurance amounts and increase the retiree contributions required to purchase
the medical coverage.

The assumed health care cost trend rate for fiscal 2004 is 10 percent, declining 2.5 percent per year to
an ultimate rate of 5 percent, and is 7 percent for fiscal 2003 and 2002. The health care cost trend rate has a
significant effect on the amounts reported. If the assumed health care cost trend rate was increased by 1 percent,
the accumulated projected benefit obligation at June 30, 2003 would have increased by $12.9 million and the
postretirement benefit expense for fiscal 2003 would have increased by $1.2 million. If the assumed health
care cost trend rate was decreased by 1 percent, the accumulated projected benefit obligation at June 30,
2003 would have decreased by $12.2 million and the postretirement benefit expense for fiscal 2003 would
have decreased by $1.1 million.

12. Contingencies and Commitments

Envirenmental

Carpenter is subject to various federal, state, local and foreign environmental laws and regulations
relating to pollution, protection of public health and the environment, natural resource damages and occupational
safety and health. Although compliance with these laws and regulations may affect the costs of Carpenter’s
operations, compliance costs to date have not been material. Carpenter has environmental remediation liabilities
at some of its owned operating facilities and has been designated as a potentially responsible party (“PRP”)
with respect to certain third-party Superfund waste disposal sites and other third party owned sites.
Additionally, Carpenter has been notified that it may be a PRP with respect to other Superfund sites as to
which no proceedings have been instituted against Carpenter. Neither the exact amount of remediation costs
nor the final method of their allocation among all designated PRPs at these Superfund sites have been
determined. The liability for future environmental remediation costs is evaluated by management on a quarterly
basis. Carpenter accrues amounts for environmental remediation costs that represent management’s best estimate
of the probable and reasonably estimable costs related to environmental remediation. During fiscal 2003, an
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additional $1.75 million was accrued for one of our current operating facilities and for a manufacturing site
of a former subsidiary of Talley Industries, Inc. Also related to the former Talley subsidiary site, a $2.25 million
other asset was recorded as the fair value of land received as part of the settlement in a bankruptcy proceeding
of a claim under an indemnification agreement. No other accruals were made during fiscal 2003 or 2002. For
fiscal 2001, the liability for environmental remediation costs was increased by $0.6 million, which was included
in cost of sales. The liabilities recorded for environmental remediation costs at Superfund sites, at other third
party-owned sites and at Carpenter-owned current or former operating facilities remaining at June 30, 2003,
2002 and 2001, were $6.8 million, $5.8 million and $8.0 million, respectively. The estimated range at June 30,
2003 of the reasonably possible future costs of remediation at Superfund sites, at other third party-owned sites and
at Carpenter-owned current or former operating facilities is between $6.8 million and $11.3 million.

Estimates of the amount and timing of future costs of environmental remediation requirements are
inherently imprecise because of the continuing evolution of environmental laws and regulatory requirements,
the availability and application of technology, the identification of currently unknown remediation sites and
the allocation of costs among the PRP’s. Based upon information currently available, such future costs are
not expected to have a material effect on Carpenter’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows,
However, such costs could be material to Carpenter’s financial position, results of operations or cash flows in
a particular future quarter or year.

Guarantees/Indemnification Obligations

In connection with the divestitures of several previously owned companies, Carpenter undertook
certain indemnification obligations as part of the definitive agreements for sale of those businesses. The
indemnification obligations relate to Carpenter’s covenants, representations and warranties under the sale
agreerments, potential liability for operations of the businesses prior to the sale and other similar matters. The
indemnification obligations are subject to conditions and limitations that are normal in agreements of this
type. Further, certain of the indemnification obligations may be limited or barred by a monetary cap or a time
limitation. However, other indemnifications are not subject to a monetary cap, therefore, we are unable to
estimate the maximum potential future liability under the indemnity provisions of these agreements. The
obligation to provide indemnification will normally arise only after the indemnified party makes a claim
subject to review by Carpenter and in compliance with applicable procedures with respect to the method and
timeliness of notice. Recourse may be available in limited situations against third parties from whom
Carpenter purchased the businesses. As of June 30, 2003 there is approximately $2.0 million recorded related
to these indemnifications.

Oiher

Carpenter also is defending various claims and legal actions, and is subject to contingencies that are
common to its operations. The effect of the outcome of these matters on Carpenter’s future results of operations
and liquidity cannot be predicted because any such effect depends on future results of operations and the
amount and timing (both as to recording future charges to operations and cash expenditures) of the resolution
of such matters. While it is not feasible to determine the outcome of these matters, management believes that
the total eventual liability will not ultimately have a material effect on Carpenter’s financial position, results
of operations or cash flows.

Carpenter has entered into purchase agreements primarily for various key raw materials at market
related prices, all made in the normal course of business. The purchase commitments covered by these agreements
aggregate approximately $90.6 million, all of which relates to fiscal 2004.

18. Operating Leases

Carpenter leases certain facilities and equipment under operating leases. Total rent expense was $11.4
million (net of sub-lease rental receipts), $12.0 million and $12.6 million for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively. '

Future minimum payments (net of sub-lease rental receipts) for noncancelable operating leases in effect
at June 30, 2003 are $7.8 million in fiscal 2004; $6.6 million in fiscal 2005; $5.4 million in fiscal 2006; $4.5 million
in fiscal 2007; $3.9 million in fiscal 2008; and $5.6 million thereafter.
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14. Common Stock Purchase Rights

Under a common stock Rights Agreement amended as of June 12, 2000, Carpenter has issued one common
stock purchase right (“Right”) for every outstanding share of common stock. Except as otherwise provided in the
Rights Agreement, the Rights will become exercisable and separate Rights certificates will be distributed to the
stockholders: (1) 10 days following the acquisition of 20 percent or more of Carpenter’s common stock, (2) 10
business days (or such later date as the Board of Directors may determine) following the commencement of a tender
or exchange offer for 20 percent or more of Carpenter’s common stock, or (3) 10 days after Carpenter’s Board
of Directors determines that a holder of 15 percent or more of Carpenter’s shares has an interest adverse to those
of Carpenter or its stockholders (an “adverse person”). Upon distribution, each Right would then entitle a holder
to buy from Carpenter one newly issued share of its common stock for an exercise price of $145.

Afier disaibution, upon: (1) any person acquiring 20 percent of the outstanding stock (other than pursuant to a
fair offer as determined by the Board of Directors), (2) a 20 percent holder engaging in certain self-dealing transactions,
(3) the determination of an adverse person, or (4) certain mergers or similar transactions between Carpenter and holder of
20 percent or more of Carpenter’s common stock, each Right (other than those held by the acquiring party) entitles the
holder to purchase shares of common stock of either the acquiring company or Carpenter (depending on the
circumstances) having a market value equal to twice the exercise price of the Right. The Rights may be redeemed by Carpenter
for $.025 per Right at any time before they become exercisable. The Rights Agreement expires on June 26, 2006.

15. Stock-Based Compensation

Carpenter has three stock-based compensation plans for officers and key employees: a 1993 plan, a 1882
plan and a 1977 plan.

1993 Plan:

The 1993 plan provides that the Board of Directors may grant incentive stock options, non-qualified
stock options, stock appreciation rights, restricted stock and performance share awards, and determine the
terms and conditions of each grant. In fiscal 1998, the plan was amended to provide the Chief Executive
Officer with limited authority to grant stock options and restricted stock. In October, 2000, the stockholders
authorized an additional 1,800,000 shares to the plan for share awards. As of June 30, 2003 and 2002, 630,113
and 851,103 shares, respectively, were reserved for options and share awards which may be granted under this plan.

Stock option grants under this plan must be at no less than market value on the date of grant, are exercisable
generally after one year of employment following the date of grant, and will in all cases expire no more than
ten years after the date of grant. In 2003, the options granted by the Board become exercisable in equal annual
increments over a three-year period.

Restricted stock awards outstanding vest from the date of grant to periods ranging principally from two
to five years from the date of grant. When restricted shares are issued, deferred compensation is determined,
and charged to expense over the vesting period. During fiscal 2003, 2002 and 2001, $1.5 million, $0.5 million
and $0.2 million, respectively, were charged to expense for vested restricted shares.

Performance share awards are earned only if Carpenter achieves certain performance levels over a
three-year period. The awards are payable at the discretion of the Board of Directors in either shares of common
stock or cash and expensed over the three-year performance period. Fiscal 2002 and 2001 included $0.3 million
in each year for reversals of prior years’ accruals relating to performance shares. There were no reversals in fiscal 2003.

1982 Plan:

Under the 1982 plan, options were granted at the market value on the date of grant, were exercisable
after one year of employment following the date of grant and expire ten years after grant. Since the 1982 Plan
expired in June 1992, no options are outstanding.

1977 Plan:

Under the 1977 plan, which is still in effect, options are granted at the market value on the date of
grant, are exercisable after one year of employment following the date of grant and expire ten years after
grant. At June 30, 2003 and 2002, 33,060 shares and 23,660 shares, respectively, were reserved for options
which may be granted under the 1977 plan.

Carpenter has a stock-based compensation plan that provides for the granting of stock options and
other market-based units to non-employee Directors. Options are granted at the market value on the date of
the grant and are exercisable after one year of Board service following the date of grant. Options expire ten years
after the date of grant. At June 30, 2003 and 2002, 138,659 and 209,000 shares, respectively, were reserved for
options which may be granted under this plan.
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Option Activity:
Weighted Average
Number of Shares Exercise Price
Balance at June 30, 2000 2,076,284 $ 3299
Granted 495,400 29.92
Exercised (154,230) 24.79
Cancelled (77,377) 33.68
Balance at June 30, 2001 9,340,077 $ 3286
Granted 633,300 23.31
Exercised (144,900) 21.15
Cancelled (32,780) 32.25
Balance at June 30, 2002 2,795,697 § 31.33
Granted 448,500 15.71
Exercised (1,200) 19.69
Cancelled (161,810) 29.46
Balance at June 30, 2003 3,081,187 $ 29.13

Outstanding and Exercisable Options:

Exercise Price. Number Outstanding  Weighted Average ~ Weighted Average Number Exercisable Weighted Average

Range at 06/30/03 Remaining Life Exercise Price at 06/30/03 Exercise Price
$19-$30 1,776,602 7.99 $ 2258 1,328,102 $ 2489
£30 - $40 783,485 5.54 31.55 783,485 31.55
$40 - $51 521,100 4.53 47.84 521,100 47.83

3,081,187 $ 2913 2,632,687 $ 3141

Of the options outstanding at June 30, 2003, 2,341,985 relate to the 1993 plan, 130,200 relate to the
1977 plan and 609,200 relate to the plan for non-employee Directors.

18. Employee Stock Ownership Plan

Carpenter has a leveraged employee stock ownership plan (“ESOP”). Carpenter issued 461.5 shares of
convertible preferred stock in fiscal 1992 at $65,000 per share to the ESOP in exchange for a $30.0 million, 15-year
9.345% note which is included in the stockholders’ equity section of the consolidated balance sheet as deferred
compensation. The preferred stock is recorded net of related issuance costs.

Principal and interest obligations on the note are satisfied by the ESOP as Carpenter makes contributions
to the ESOP and dividends are paid on the preferred stock. As payments are made on the note, shares of preferred
stock are allocated to participating employees’ accounts within the ESOP. Carpenter contributed $1.9 million in
fiscal 2003, $1.8 million in fiscal 2002 and $1.7 million in fiscal 2001 to the ESOP. Compensation expense related
to the plan was $1.3 million in fiscal 2003, $1.4 million in fiscal 2002 and $1.5 million in fiscal 2001.

As of June 30, 2003, the ESOP held 353.6 shares of the convertible preferred stock, consisting of 230.9
allocated shares and 122.7 unallocated shares. Each preferred share is convertible into at least 2,000 shares of
common stock. There are 707,229 common shares reserved for issuance under the ESOP at June 30, 2003. The
shares of preferred stock pay a cumulative annual dividend of $5,362.50 per share, are entitled to vote together
with the common stock as a single class and have 2,600 votes per share. To the extent permitted by the ESOP and
its trustee, the stock is redeemable at Carpenter’s option at $65,000 per share.

As a provision of the ESOP, participants are guaranteed a common share price of $32.50 per share upon
conversion. At June 30, 2003, $7.6 million was included in other non-current liabilities representing the amount
that the actual common stock share value is below the guaranteed conversion share value. The $7.6 million was
comprised of a reduction in convertible preferred stock of $12.0 million offset by a reduction in deferred compensation
of $4.4 million.
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17. Income Taxes

Provision (benefit) for income taxes consisted of the following:

(in millions) 2003 2002 2001

Current:
Federal $ (0.2) $ (18.1) $ 6.0
State 0.3 (1.0) 2.4
Foreign 2.8 2.6 3.7

Deferred:
Federal (12.8) 7.2 11.2
State (1.9) 2.0 (0.1)
Foreign - - -
$ (12.0) $ (7.3 $ 23.2

The operating loss generated in fiscal 2003 was carried back to prior years, and the tax benefit was
recorded as a current asset on the consolidated balance sheet. The fiscal 2001 income tax benefit resulting from
recording the cumulative effect on prior years due to the SAB 101 accounting change was $9.4 million.

The following is a reconciliation of the United States statutory federal income tax rate to the actual effective
income tax rate:

(% of pre-tax (loss) income) 2003 2002 2001
Statutory federal income 1ax rate (35.00% (35.0)% 35.0%
Research and development credits (10.0) (12.0) -
State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit (6.1 4.1 3.3
Foreign tax differential 0.5 3.0 (0.2)
Nontaxable income (1.2) (14.7) (2.8)
Goodwill amortization - - 5.1
Goodwill writedown - - 4.1
Settlement of prior years’ tax issues - - (4.8)
Other, net (0.6) (0.3) -
Effective income tax rate (52.4)% (54.9) % 39.7%

Deferred taxes are recorded based upon temporary differences between financial statement and tax
bases of assets and liabilities. The following deferred tax liabilities and assets were recorded as of June 30, 2003
and 2002:

(in millions) 2003 2002
Deferred tax liabilities:
Depreciation $ 180.9 $ 1723
Prepaid pension cost 104.2 96.6
Intangible assets 7.8 10.8
Inventories 8.4 11.5
Other 3.1 9.5
Tortal deferred tax liabilities $ 304.4 $ 300.7
Deferred tax assets:
Postretirement provisions $ 68.3 $ 67.0
Net operating loss carryforwards 28.2 6.6
Other reserve provisions 22.3 34.1
Tax credit carryforwards 18.2 6.8
Valuation allowance (3.6) (2.0)
Total deferred tax assets $ 133.4 § 1125
Net deferred tax liability $ 171.0 5 188.2
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As of June 30, 2003 and 2002, subsidiaries of the Company had available tax net operating losses that can
be carried forward to future years. The $28.2 million net operating loss carryforward in 2003 expires in 2022. Of the
$5.6 mill'on net operating loss carryforward in 2002, $3.1 million expires in 2017 and the remaining $3.5 million is
attributable to a foreign subsidiary that has an unlimited carryforward period. The tax credit carryforward in 2003
consists of $15.9 million of Alternative Minimum Tax credits, which can be carried forward indefinitely, and
$2.3 million of Research and Development credits. The tax credit carryforward in 2002 represents Alternative
Minimum Tax credits, which can be carried forward indefinitely.

At June 30, 2003, no provision has been made for U.S. federal and state income taxes on approximately
$40.0 of foreign earnings, which are expected to be reinvested indefinitely. Upon distribution of those earnings in the
form of dividends or otherwise, the Company would be subject to U.S. income taxes, including any adjustment for
foreign tax credit, state income taxes, and withholding taxes payable to the various foreign countries.

18. Other Income, Net

Other (income) expense, net consists of the following:

(in millions) ‘ ) 2003 2002 9901
Continued dumping and subsidy offset $ (2.8 $ (3.5) ) -
Interest income (1.8) (2.0) (2.6)
Loss (gain) on writedowns and disposal of property, plant

and equipment 1.1 4.4 (1.5)
(Gain on sale of businesses (0.9) - -
Foreign exchange loss 8.5 1.1 0.2
Writedown to market value of investments in life

insurance policies 0.2 0.2 1.9
Other - @D 07 (03) _
o 5 (38) $(05) 823 T
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19. Business Segments, Geographic and Product Data

Carpenter is organized in the following business units: Specialty Alloys Operations, Dynamet, Carpenter
Powder Products, and Engineered Products. For segment reporting, the Specialty Alloys Operations, Dynamet, and
Carpenter Powder Products operating segments have been aggregated into one reportable segment, Specialty Metals,
because of the similarities in products, processes, customers, distribution methods and economic characteristics.

Specialty Metals includes the manufacture and distribution of stainless steels, titanium, high temperature
alloys, electronic alloys, tool steels and other alloys in billet, bar, wire, rod, strip and powder forms. Specialty
Metals sales are distributed directly from Carpenter’s production plants and its distribution network and through
independent distributors.

Engineered Products includes structural ceramic products, ceramic cores for the casting industry, tubular
meta} products for nuclear and aerospace applications and custom shaped bar.

The accounting policies of both reportable segments are the same as those described in the Summary of
Significant Accounting Policies.

The net pension credit represents the income relating to Carpenter’s overfunded defined benefit
pension plan less the expense for the postretirement benefit plans and the other underfunded defined benefit
pension plans. The net pension credit relates predominately to the Specialty Metals segment. The corporate costs
primarily represent the unallocated portion of the operating costs of the finance, law and human resource
departments as well as the corporate management staff. The special charge is discussed in detail in note 3. Of the
total 2003 special charge, approximately $20.3, $1.0 and $4.8 million relate to the Specialty Metals segment,
Engineering Products segment and Corporate, respectively. In addition, $4.5 million relates to the premium on early
retirement of debt. Other income, net, is described in note 18, Corporate assets are primarily domestic cash and cash
equivalents, prepaid pension cost, corporate-owned life insurance and corporate plant, equipment and software.

On a consolidated basis, Carpenter’s sales are not materially dependent on a single customer or a small
group of customers. Of the total sales of our Engineered Products segment, approximately 14 percent of segment
sales were to one customer and 12 percent of sales were to a second customer. There were no other significant
individual customer sales volumes during fiscal years 2002 and 2001.

Geographic Data
(in millzons) 2003 2002 2001
Net sales:[A)
United States $ 653.2 § 728.0 $1,079.9
Europe 111.1 142.2 130.9
Mexico 439 45.3 52.6
Canada 17.4 20.3 21.4
Asia Pacific 33.8 26.3 24.0
Other 11.9 15.0 15.3
Consolidated net sales $ 871.1 $ 9771 $1,324.1
Long-lived assets:
United States $ 996.0 $1,066.5 $1,181.9
Europe 17.9 18.0 23.9
Mexico 4.6 6.6 14.1
Canada 0.3 0.4 0.7
Asia Pacific 10.1 10.4 10.4
Other 1.4 1.7 1.4
Consolidated long-lived assets $1,030.3 $1,103.6 $1,232.4

[A] Net sales are attributed to countries based on the location of the customer.

Product Data

(in millions) 2003 2002 2001
Stainless steels $ 392.8 $ 3957 $ 569.4
Special alloys 291.7 367.9 466.7
Ceramics and other materials 83.2 94.0 132.4
Tiranium products 66.6 82.5 92.7
Tool and other steels %6.8 37.0 62.9
Total net sales $ 87L1.1 $ 9771 $1,324.1
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Segment Data
(in. mllions) 2003 2002 2001
Net Sales:
Specialty Metals $ 760.2 $ 850.8 $ 1,1686
Engineered Products 113.3 128.5 156.9
Intersegment (2.4) (2.2) (1.4)
Consolidated net sales $ 871.1 $ 977.1 $ 1,324.1
Operating Results:
Specialty Metals $ 38.8 $ 12.9 $ 98.8
Engineered Products 10.8 10.5 15.7
Net pension credit 3.4 17.1 40.3
Corporate costs (18.2) (19.7) (20.8)
Interest expense (3L.0) (34.6) (40.3)
Special charge (30.6) - (37.6)
Other income, net 3.8 0.5 2.3
Consolidated (loss) income before income taxes and
cumulative effect of accounting changes $ (229 $ (13.3) $ 58.4
Total Assets:
Specialty Metals $ 990.7 $ 1,057.7 $ 1,310.2
Engineered Products 74.5 90.4 102.2
Corporate 334.7 331.4 279.1
Consolidated total assets $ 1,399.9 § 14795 § 16915
Depreciation:
Specialty Metals $ 46.4 $ 48.1 8 45.1
Engineered Products 4.8 4.9 6.4
Corporate 2.1 3.5 4.1
Consolidated depreciation 3 53.3 ? 56.5 b 55.6
Amortization:
Specialty Metals $ 9.4 B 9.60Al $ 13.5
Engineered Products 0.5 0.81al 2.3
Corporate 0.8 0.8(A] 1.1
Consolidated amortization $ 16.7 3 TT.21A7 3 16.9
Capital Expenditures, Including Software: M
" Specialty Metals $ 7.1 $ 21.1 $ 40.6
Engineered Products 1.3 3.9 3.2
Corporate 0.1 1.7 1.7
Consolidated capital expenditures, including software $ 8.5 3 26.7 3 50.5

[A] Pursuant to SFAS 142, effective July 1, 2001, goodwill is no longer being amortized. Total fiscal 2001 goodwill amortization was $6.7 million;
$5.6 million related to Specialty Metals, while $1.1 million related to Engineered Products. See note 6 to the consolidated financial statements.

20. Divestures

During 2003, Carpenter sold the last two of the four Engineered Product Group (EPG) business units that it
had previously announced would be divested. Proceeds of $8.5 million exceeded the carrying value by approximately
$0.9 million. The operating resuits of these businesses were included in the EPG segment prior to the disposal. The
$0.9 million gain on sale is included within other (income) expense, net on the consolidated statement of operations.

21. Supplemental Data

The following are additional required disclosures and other material items:

{(1n mullions) 2003 2002 2001
Cost Data:

Repairs and maintenance costs $ 45.5 $ 522 $ 59.8
Cash Flow Data:

Cash paid during the year for:

Interest payments, net of amounts capitalized $ 33.0 $ 323 $ 398
Income tax refunds, net $ B5.9 $ 6.1 g 28
Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss:
Foreign currency translation adjustment $ (12.8) $ (15.0) $ (15.1)
Minimurn pension lability adjustment {1.5) - -
Net unrealized gains (losses) on derivatives - 2.5 (1.6)
_$(14.3) $ (12.5) ¥ (1—677)‘"“.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Years Ended June 30

(in millions, except per share data) 2003LAl 2002(B] 2001tc 2000 1999101
Surmmary of Operations
Net sales $ 871.1 $ 9771 $ 1,324.1 $ 1,109.1 $1,049.3

(Loss) income before cumulative
effect of accounting changes $  (10.9) $ (6.0) $ 352 $ 533 $ 371

Cumulative effect of accounting
changes, (net of $9.4 million
tax in fiscal 2001) (112.3) (14.1)

" Net (loss) income s ‘m.&» C $7(i183) § 911 % 553 § g

Financial Position at Year-End

Total assets

Long-term obligations, net of
current portion (including

convertible preferred stock) $  896.7 $ 4002 $ 3523 $ 3783 $ 3818

Per Share Data

R

1,399.9 $ 1,479.5 $ 1,691.5 $ 1,745.9 $ 1,607.8

Net (loss)earnings:
Basic
(Loss) earnings before cumulative

effect of accounting changes $ (0.56) $ (0.85) % 1.52 $ 2.35 8 1.61
Cumulative effect of accounting
changes - (5.06) {0.64) - =
' ‘Ngt;(}(_)_séj earﬁﬁg_s _ B 8 (0.56) $ (5.41) § 0.88 $ 235 § 161
Diluted o o T

(Loss) earnings before cumulative
effect of accounting changes $ 0.56) § (0.35) § 1.50 $ 2.31 $ 1.58

Cumulative effect of accounting

_ changes e G- 20) S (21223 H e S
Net (loss) earnings 3 (0.56) $ (b41) $ 088 $ 231 $ 158
“Cash dividends-common $ 05775 § 132  § 1.82 $ 132§ 1.32

[A] Fiscal 2003 includes a special charge of $30.6 million related principally to workforce reduction, pension plan curtailment loss, loss on early
retirement of debt and writedown of certain assets. See note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

[B] Fiscal 2002 reflects the adoption of SFAS 142 (Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets) effective July 1, 2001. See note 1 to the consolidated
financial statements.

[C] Fiscal 2001 reflects the adoption of SAB 101 (Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements) effective July 1, 2000. See note 1 to the
consolidated financial statements. In addition, fiscal 2001 includes a special charge of $37.6 million related principally to the realignment of
Specialty Alloys Operations, planned divestitures of certain Engineered Products Group businesses and a loss on the disposal of the Bridgeport,
Connecticut site. See note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.

[D] Fiscal 1999 includes a special charge of $14.2 million related to a salaried workforce reduction and a reconfiguration of the U.S. distribution network.
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